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·1· · · · · · · ·P R O C E E D I N G S

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· We're

·3· ·back on the record.· This is a protest hearing, Case

·4· ·Number 16-PRO-00016, Capitol Market, License Number

·5· ·91021.· Would the parties please approach and identify

·6· ·themself for the record please.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Kirby Vining opening for the

·8· ·Stronghold Civic Association.

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Laura Jackson, president of

10· ·the Stronghold Civic Association.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Good afternoon.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Efrem Abraham, the owner of

13· ·Capitol Market.

14· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I'm sorry.· And you

15· ·sir?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Mebrahtialen Gebrkidan, the

17· ·partner of --

18· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I heard nothing you

19· ·said.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· I said my name is

21· ·Mebrahtialen Gebrkidan, the partner of Efrem Abraham.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All I heard was my
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·1· ·name is, and I didn't -- so slow down, sir, because I --

·2· ·as this proceeding goes by I need to refer to you.· So

·3· ·at least I need to get your name so I can write it down.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Mebrahtialen.· I'm the

·5· ·partner of Abraham.

·6· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· One more

·7· ·time, sir, please tell me your name.· Just slowly tell

·8· ·me your -- what's your first name.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· My first name is

10· ·Mebrahtialen.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· How do you spell

12· ·that?

13· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· M-E-B-R-A-H-T-I-A-L-E-N.

14· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And your last name?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Gebrkidan,

16· ·G-E-B-R-K-I-D-A-N.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Gebrkidan.· All

18· ·right.· I -- I apologize in advance.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· No problem.· It's not like

20· ·strange.

21· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I just you want you

22· ·to know that I -- it's not -- it's not -- it will not be
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·1· ·intentional if I butcher your name towards this

·2· ·proceeding.· Okay.· All right.· Hold on.· All right.

·3· ·This is a protest hearing that we're having here.· And

·4· ·the purpose of this protest is that the establishment is

·5· ·applying a substantial change application to change from

·6· ·a B to an A.· The -- the change is being -- is being

·7· ·protested by the Stronghold Civic Association.· And just

·8· ·one thing I want to remind you of is that the purpose --

·9· ·the standard is the appropriateness of the -- this

10· ·establishment for the neighborhood that it -- that it's

11· ·currently in.· I know that there might be other issues.

12· ·But it's an appropriateness standard that I want to make

13· ·sure that we hone the testimony on -- on -- on that

14· ·standard.· So -- so I know that if -- if whatever the

15· ·other issues are as long as you can tie it to that

16· ·standard, then we're fine.· So I just want to make sure

17· ·that you're aware of what it is that's being protested

18· ·and the standard that The Board will utilize to make its

19· ·decision.· All right.

20· · · · · · · ·Now, for the -- the way the process is that

21· ·the -- the applicant is going to go first.· The

22· ·applicant will call its witnesses, also provide us with
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·1· ·its documents and witnesses.· Once the applicant has

·2· ·called its first witness, then the protestant can ask

·3· ·questions of -- of the applicant's witness.· Once the

·4· ·protestant asks questions of the applicant questions,

·5· ·then The Board will ask some -- The Board will ask some

·6· ·questions.· The applicant will have an opportunity to do

·7· ·a re-examination -- a re-examination of the questions

·8· ·based on the questions that The Board asked.· And then

·9· ·the protestants will also have an opportunity to ask

10· ·questions.· But again, those questions have to be based

11· ·on the questions that The Board asked.· It cannot be

12· ·that in -- that you had forgotten to raise an issue so

13· ·let me -- this is my opportunity to do it.· It has to be

14· ·based on a question that was based here.· And if you

15· ·raise those questions, I might let you know that -- I

16· ·might let you know that you cannot ask that question

17· ·because it's beyond the scope of the questions that were

18· ·asked by The Board.

19· · · · · · · ·Now, for -- for the applicant can you tell

20· ·me how many witnesses do you have and how -- how you

21· ·plan to present your case, sir.· Who's going to --

22· ·who's -- who's the represent -- you're Mr. Abraham.· You
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·1· ·are the --you're -- you're the one going to present the

·2· ·case?

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Both.

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right,

·5· ·Mr. Gebrkidan.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Gebrkidan.

·7· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· The -- who's -- tell

·8· ·me the process.· Who's going to testify or tell me how

·9· ·you -- you plan to present your case.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Well, we're going to present

11· ·the case, and we have the witnesses -- the witnesses

12· ·present.· They are witnesses in written form.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· So you don't have

14· ·any -- you don't have any witnesses here who's going to

15· ·testify today?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· As far as I know.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· So it's

18· ·basically the statements that are in the documents.· So

19· ·basically you're -- it's basically a statement.· And are

20· ·both of you going to testify or just one?· How would --

21· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.· Both.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Both of you?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· So what I

·3· ·will do is that I'm going to swear both of you in.· And

·4· ·so although you're -- you're being -- you're

·5· ·representing your case, but you're also a witness.· So I

·6· ·will swear you in to make sure that you're telling the

·7· ·truth.· Okay?· All right.

·8· · · · · · · ·For the protestant how many -- who's

·9· ·presenting the case?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· We have a total of six starting

11· ·with myself, and then Laura Jackson, the president of

12· ·the Stronghold Civic Association.· Then Katherine Young,

13· ·former vice president of the Stronghold Civic

14· ·Association; two community resident witnesses, Jason

15· ·Orfanan and Kate Segarra, and Chris Leptak.

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· So you

17· ·have six witnesses that you're going to call?

18· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· A total of six.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And who is -- how --

20· ·who's representing -- I mean how are you going to do it

21· ·in a sense of asking questions?· How is -- how will the

22· ·case be presented?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I will present an opening

·2· ·statement that we worked on jointly, and then Laura

·3· ·Jackson, the president would follow up with how this

·4· ·whole process worked from the president of the

·5· ·Stronghold Civic Association.· And I think I'll defer to

·6· ·her as is appropriate as the president of our civic

·7· ·association to ask questions of the other side unless

·8· ·she defers to one of the other witnesses.

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, that's what I

10· ·need -- that's what I need to know in the beginning.· So

11· ·since in their presentation they're going to testify,

12· ·who is going to cross examine them?

13· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Okay.· I would like to defer

14· ·that to Mr. Vining since he has been our representative

15· ·throughout the whole proceedings.

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Okay.· So I -- so

17· ·he's -- he's basically going to do the cross

18· ·examinations of -- and so -- so he's the only one then

19· ·who's authorized through the proceedings to ask

20· ·questions.· And so when you present your -- your

21· ·witnesses who is going to be the person who's going

22· ·to -- will he also ask direct questions of the -- the
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·1· ·witnesses that you guys are calling?

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· The witnesses have already had

·3· ·their testimony for what they want to present.

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· No.· But I'm saying

·5· ·are the witnesses -- are they sitting in the audience

·6· ·and so therefore they're going to come up and you're

·7· ·going to ask them questions?

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· We -- uh-huh.· Yeah.· They'll

·9· ·come up.

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And -- but I'm saying

11· ·so who's going to ask them questions?

12· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I don't know we'd planned that.

13· ·The --

14· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· We didn't plan on asking our

15· ·own witnesses questions, but --

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· So you just --

17· ·they're just going to read a statement?

18· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· They're just going to present

19· ·their -- their statements.· Yes.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· And so

21· ·you're not going to ask them -- neither of you are going

22· ·to ask them any questions based off their statements?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· We hadn't planned to do that.

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Hadn't planned on it.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· The opening statement that we

·4· ·were going to present here covers all the issues here.

·5· ·And then these -- there are some specialists living

·6· ·closer to the store for example with some personal

·7· ·experience of interactions with the community in

·8· ·different ways which is all covered here in --

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· No.· I mean that's --

10· ·that's -- that's fine.· But have -- do you see the way

11· ·it works?· Have you ever watched --

12· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· In the event -- I'm sorry.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Go ahead, ma'am.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· In the event that questions

15· ·need to be answered, could both of us -- both of us be

16· ·able to ask questions?

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And that's what I

18· ·need to get clarified first.· So when -- when the

19· ·witness testify if -- someone has to ask them a question

20· ·to -- for them to introduce themself.· So you have to

21· ·call them to say -- ask them to introduce themself, and

22· ·then you can ask a broad question so they can read what
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·1· ·they have.· In order to be in the -- I'm going to swear

·2· ·them in.· And so they just can't sit there and just

·3· ·start spouting off.· So --

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· So you have already

·6· ·read their statements.· You know what it is that they're

·7· ·going to ask.· So you need to let me know who is going

·8· ·to ask them a question.· And so once you ask them a

·9· ·question, then they can start -- spout off.

10· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Okay.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· But someone has to

12· ·ask them a question.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I still say Mr. Vining.

14· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And then I -- further

15· ·suppose they say something with like -- like The Board

16· ·asks them a question and they gave the wrong answer,

17· ·that's not the answer you was responding, then you have

18· ·an opportunity to ask them a follow-up question to

19· ·clarify that.· That's why I'm -- that's why I'm asking

20· ·you like who would ask that question like just in case

21· ·if they say something that you wasn't expecting it and

22· ·so therefore you want an opportunity to kind of clean up
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·1· ·what they said, to ask them did they -- did they mean

·2· ·that or -- so that's why I'm asking you who wants to ask

·3· ·those questions.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Okay.· I will still say

·5· ·Mr. Vining because he chaired the committee.

·6· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Is that okay with

·7· ·you, Mr. Vining?· I know you've been -- I know you have

·8· ·been volunteered, but I do need to make sure that you

·9· ·know -- that you agree that you're being -- I'm just

10· ·trying to establish the procedures to follow.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· So this is process and

12· ·procedure.· And if I can compare this to a court, you're

13· ·saying I can open it up when I finish our opening

14· ·remarks here.· So I would like to ask Ms. Laura Jackson

15· ·or right after me, president of the Stronghold Civic

16· ·Association, Ms. Jackson, could you please describe the

17· ·process from the point of view of the president or

18· ·whoever.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And then you can --

20· ·and then -- because she's now testifying.· So what I'm

21· ·going to do is that I'm going to swear her in and she

22· ·can sit at the box there and I'll have her raise her
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·1· ·right hand.· And I'm going to do that -- well, because

·2· ·I'm trying to figure out how I'm going to do it with

·3· ·them.· But I'm just saying that I'll have her sit there,

·4· ·have her -- swear her in, and then you can ask her a

·5· ·basic question.· And then because you're not a lawyer

·6· ·and because I'm giving -- I'll give some -- because

·7· ·normally, you know, you just can't have a witness go up

·8· ·there and talk for 20 minutes.· There has to be a

·9· ·question that's been asked that they're being --

10· ·they're -- they're being asked.· But I understand that

11· ·you -- you weren't prepared to do that so I'll give you

12· ·some leeway in a sense of how long the person can talk.

13· ·But -- so just the question that you ask them make sure

14· ·that the question will cover everything that you know

15· ·that you want them to state.· And if -- if there are

16· ·certain things that they didn't cover -- and this is for

17· ·the same -- both sides if -- you can ask more questions

18· ·to make sure that the points you want us to hear, that

19· ·it comes out.· And I'll also ask you if you have any

20· ·documents or witnesses you want -- documents you want to

21· ·put a part of the record.· And then you can -- I know

22· ·that I have your PIF.· And so you can also -- you want

http://www.olenderreporting.com


·1· ·to make this, you can introduce that to say like I would

·2· ·like these documents be a part of the -- the -- the

·3· ·record.· And so at the end of the hearing The Board

·4· ·will -- will put -- make this a part of the official

·5· ·record.· And so therefore we will review the testimony

·6· ·that was given today and also review the documents too.

·7· ·And we'll use that to make our decision.· All right.

·8· ·Does anyone have any questions about procedures?· Feel

·9· ·free to ask if you're -- I'm getting these looks and so

10· ·-- yeah.· Yes.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Do we -- do we have to

12· ·resubmit documents that were sent in advance?

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, we have your --

14· ·but you have to -- I -- you have to identify the

15· ·documents for the record.· So because although we might

16· ·have it and so therefore you have to say -- you -- you

17· ·need to identify what the document is and what document

18· ·is it that you want to be in the record.· But I'll --

19· ·I'll work with you to -- to get that done.

20· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Okay.

21· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· But it has to be

22· ·moved, yeah, in the -- in the record.· So you have to
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·1· ·say something, and then I'll make it a part of the

·2· ·official record.· You need -- yes, Mr. Silverstein.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Mr. Chairman, are we going

·4· ·to -- are we going to have 90 minutes for each side as

·5· ·we usually do --

·6· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· And to also cross examine

·8· ·the other side in the 90-minute time limit?

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well --

10· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· [Inaudible 13:43]

11· ·strictly?

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yeah.· I mean then so

13· ·you have -- basically you have five minutes to give your

14· ·opening.· And at the end of the case I'll have you --

15· ·you can have another five minutes to do the -- your

16· ·closing.· And then you'll have 90 -- each side will have

17· ·90 minutes to present the case, your case.· And so

18· ·therefore your 90 minutes is basically -- so don't use

19· ·all of your time cross examining the witness.· So -- so

20· ·therefore you need to just ask questions that you think

21· ·are pertinent so -- to -- to what is it that you want

22· ·come out.· Because if you're going to cross examine him
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·1· ·for -- for 90 minutes and then you might not have any

·2· ·time left to present your case.· So just in a sense that

·3· ·I'm -- I'm not going to say well, you know, your 90

·4· ·minutes is up, you're -- you need to -- you can't

·5· ·present your case.· But I'm just saying that there's a

·6· ·time constraint.· So please be -- be mindful of the

·7· ·time.· We're here to -- for however long this takes so

·8· ·I'm not going to rush you.· But just to let you know

·9· ·that there are some time constraints that I want you to

10· ·be aware of in moving the case.· And I -- as time -- I

11· ·might -- if you're trying to make an argument and if The

12· ·Board has gotten it, then I'll say move on, we have

13· ·gotten -- we have gotten it so move on to another area.

14· ·Any other questions by either side?· This is the time to

15· ·ask any procedural questions about the process that you

16· ·don't understand.· You guys are fine?· Yes, sir.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· My question is if [inaudible

18· ·15:22] like these three like you said who's going to

19· ·represent the case.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Uh-huh.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· If he starts, he got to finish

22· ·it, that's what he --
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, I mean your

·2· ·case is a little bit different because it's both of you.

·3· ·So you -- you -- you let me know what is it that you're

·4· ·going to -- what -- tell me what is it that you're going

·5· ·to do just generally.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Actually, it's -- as I said,

·7· ·it's nothing -- I can say nothing else.· I can explain

·8· ·the case.

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And that's what you

10· ·do.· That's what you -- you need to explain the case,

11· ·why is it that you believe that The Board should grant

12· ·you the A license to change from the B and why is it

13· ·that you believe it's appropriate for the area.· That's

14· ·the type of information that -- since you need to --

15· ·you're asking for something, they are disagreeing with

16· ·it, they're protesting.· They're telling The Board that

17· ·we shouldn't give it to you.· So you need to -- the

18· ·information that you presented you need to convince The

19· ·Board why is it that The Board should grant you this A.

20· ·And the protestant, they're going to bring information

21· ·to say why is it that they believe that it's not

22· ·appropriate for the area and so The Board should not
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·1· ·grant the license -- the A license.· I mean you have --

·2· ·you already have a license.· We're not -- we're not

·3· ·discussing your B license.· All we're discussing here is

·4· ·whether or not you should be granted an A license.· But

·5· ·whatever decision that we make here today will no way

·6· ·impact your current license.· This is whether or not

·7· ·you -- whether or not we're going to agree to grant you

·8· ·your request to change from a B to an A.· All right.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Thanks.

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· So are

11· ·there any preliminary matters that anyone wants to

12· ·discuss?· I did ask some procedurals, but is there

13· ·anything prior to us starting the hearing that you want

14· ·to discuss or make prior to us officially starting the

15· ·hearing?· All your witnesses are here?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Yes.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· You know, sometimes

18· ·folks might say I'm going to have a witness come in at

19· ·4:00 I mean and are we going to still be here.· That's

20· ·a -- all right.· All right.· So the applicant's opening

21· ·statement.· So what I'll -- what is it is that give me

22· ·now an overview of your case.· You're not telling --
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·1· ·you're not presenting your case.· You're just telling me

·2· ·just an overview what is it that you're asking for and

·3· ·why is it The Board should grant this.· So after you

·4· ·provide the overview, then I'll have them also provide

·5· ·their overview.· And then later on after they provide --

·6· ·present their overview, then you can be a little bit

·7· ·more specific in either you want to give specific

·8· ·testimony about what it is that -- why is it that The

·9· ·Board should grant the license.· So you ready?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Yeah.· I was in business at

11· ·the same place since 2013.· And since I was there I have

12· ·the license B for beer and wine.· And I have customers

13· ·they've been asking for liquor license -- I mean for

14· ·liquor.· So I told that it's not possible to sell with a

15· ·grocery.· But when I ask about it like people had the

16· ·same license like me, they said it's possible.· So I try

17· ·to get them like what they need -- what I have for a

18· ·neighborhood.· I will keep it as it is, I will add it if

19· ·I can.· So also I will try to get for the people asking

20· ·liquor and I don't have it.· So that's the reason I'm

21· ·asking liquor license, to -- to have my customer what

22· ·they need.
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Yes.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· When we first learned of the

·3· ·application for a Class A license the Stronghold Civic

·4· ·Association vowed two things; one, we need to find out

·5· ·about this license process, ABRA rules, regulations; and

·6· ·two, we are neutral on this process, let's find out what

·7· ·the community position on it is and we will present

·8· ·that.

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· That is your opening

10· ·statement?

11· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· That's the -- I've got a full

12· ·opening statement here.· Shall I read that?

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yeah.· That's --

14· ·that's -- that's what -- that's what you do now, you

15· ·give your --

16· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· So this is the introduction to

17· ·the -- what is filed with you, the -- the long form.

18· ·This is the short form.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, so you're --

20· ·the opening statement is that you tell me -- you tell me

21· ·why you're protesting this matter and you can also tell

22· ·me what witnesses you're going to call and what they're
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·1· ·going to testify to.· But because you're -- you're

·2· ·providing me with a road -- a roadmap to say this is

·3· ·what you need to look for, this is what we intend to

·4· ·prove as we present our case.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Okay.· Then I'll read that.

·6· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· But if you -- so if

·7· ·you have that -- that long statement, then this is your

·8· ·opportunity to do it, not later.· Hold on one minute.

·9· ·Yes.· Yes, Mr. Silverstein.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Mr. Chairman, what we --

11· ·we often say is you're in three parts here; the opening

12· ·statement, the body, and the closing statement.· In the

13· ·opening statement you tell us what you're going to tell

14· ·us.· In the body of your protest you tell us.· At the

15· ·end you tell us what you told us.· So this is like this

16· ·is what we're going to do, and then you do it.· So

17· ·this -- this should be short and just a quick roadmap.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Okay.· That's this.· This is

19· ·the one pager here.· Shall I proceed?

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Sure, sir.· Go ahead.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I'm Kirby Vining, an officer in

22· ·the Stronghold Civic Association here before you as a
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·1· ·member of the Stronghold ABRA Committee which was formed

·2· ·to find out what we should do to present this opening

·3· ·statement on behalf of the Stronghold community that we

·4· ·represent.· A petition and written comments presented to

·5· ·you in Exhibits 4 and 5 document the position of the

·6· ·Stronghold community concerning this significant license

·7· ·change application and are the basis for our remarks and

·8· ·exhibits today.· You will also hear from the applicant

·9· ·and the ANC on this application.· But who if anyone

10· ·beyond themselves their position represents is not known

11· ·to us.· The views of the Stronghold -- if the views of

12· ·the Stronghold community where this business is located

13· ·are of importance to ABRA in making a decision about the

14· ·appropriateness of this license application as we

15· ·believe it should be, ABRA will deny this application.

16· ·Our civic association president Laura Jackson will

17· ·describe in more detail our efforts to find and support

18· ·our community's position on this application.· But I

19· ·would like to stress that the Stronghold Civic

20· ·Association was initially neutral on this matter and

21· ·quickly formed an ABRA committee to educate ourselves on

22· ·ABRA rules and procedures so that we could speak
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·1· ·knowledgeably with our neighbors about the application

·2· ·and what role -- our role could and would be.· We vowed

·3· ·to find out what our community position -- our community

·4· ·position supported, whatever it was.· I think that we

·5· ·were surprised at the overwhelming negative -- negative

·6· ·response of our community to this application again as

·7· ·documented in Exhibits 4 and 5.· But that position

·8· ·became our position, the community position we present

·9· ·to you today.

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· All

11· ·right.· I -- I failed to neglect to you that the way the

12· ·process is going to go is that The Board is going to

13· ·call its witness, and our witness is going to be the --

14· ·the investigator.· So our investigator will provide us

15· ·his report.· And then once he provides his report, then

16· ·either side will listen to the report.· And if you need

17· ·to ask him any specific questions about the report, what

18· ·he just testified to, then you can ask him the

19· ·questions.· Okay?· All right.· So The Board will call

20· ·its first witness, and that's Mr. Jason Peru.

21· · · · · · · ·Can you please raise your right -- raise

22· ·your right hand please.· Do you swear or affirm to tell
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·1· ·the truth and nothing but the truth?

·2· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· I do.

·3· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Thank

·4· ·you.· Have a seat, sir.· We're here for a protest

·5· ·hearing regarding the Capitol Market.· And can you tell

·6· ·us what information -- what information if any were you

·7· ·a lot find out regarding this matter?

·8· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· Yes, sir.· I received

·9· ·this protest in reference to changing over from a Class

10· ·B to a class A.· I was told --

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Excuse me one minute.

12· ·Do you guys have a copy of his report?

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Yeah.

14· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Okay.· Go

15· ·ahead.

16· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· The -- I received

17· ·letters from ANC 5E who has recently withdrew their

18· ·protest and also from the Stronghold Community

19· ·Association.· The protest issues were the real property

20· ·values; adverse impact on peace, order, and quiet; and

21· ·residential parking.· On Saturday, June 11th I visited

22· ·Capitol Market and I met with the owner, Mr. -- I don't
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·1· ·want to destroy your name here, sir, and I'll just refer

·2· ·to the owner -- and stated that he applied for the

·3· ·substantial change.· He said he wanted -- that the

·4· ·community kept asking to provide spirits.· He stated

·5· ·that he met with the civic association and the ANC and

·6· ·was willing to work with them any concerns that they

·7· ·had.· He stated that he was waiting to hear back from

·8· ·the civic -- civic association with a settlement

·9· ·agreement.· He stated that he would keep selling

10· ·groceries for the neighborhood and extend his enclosed

11· ·counter to keep the spirits secured.· He stated he was

12· ·also willing to keep the word liquor off the front of

13· ·the store and instead of use the word spirits.· He

14· ·stated that he had been in business since 2013 and has

15· ·not had any problems.· He stated that he would keep his

16· ·current hours of sales that he had.· And at the time I

17· ·conducted a regulatory inspection, and there was no

18· ·violations.· In my report I did list that I spoke with

19· ·the ANC 5E member who stated -- Ms. Barnes stated that

20· ·she was trying to support the Stronghold, but the

21· ·Stronghold did not want to explore an SA that they had

22· ·proposed.· Therefore Ms. Barnes stated that the ANC did
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·1· ·not have any issues or concerns regarding Capitol

·2· ·Market.

·3· · · · · · · ·On Friday, June 17th I also spoke with

·4· ·Stronghold Civic Association president, Ms. Laura

·5· ·Jackson.· Ms. Jackson stated that a SA had not been

·6· ·drafted and that she didn't have any further information

·7· ·to provide to me.· She stated that Mr. Kirby Vining was

·8· ·handling the protest.· I made several attempts to

·9· ·contact Mr. Vining, was unable to -- to do so at the

10· ·time the report was written, and I haven't spoken to him

11· ·since.· The neighborhood, it's located in a R3 zone

12· ·which is primarily residents.· Nearby there's -- there's

13· ·not much around there.· There's only one ABC other

14· ·licensed establishment which is a B grocery store as

15· ·well, Sun Beam Market.· There's no schools or libraries

16· ·or daycare centers located within 400 feet of the

17· ·establishment.· Capitol -- the Capitol Market sits on

18· ·the corner of Capitol Street NE and Channing Street NE.

19· ·It's a first floor, two -- two story, row style brick

20· ·building with residences on Channing Street and

21· ·surrounding it on Capitol Street.

22· · · · · · · ·ABRA personnel monitored Capitol Market on
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·1· ·eight different occasions from May 31st through June

·2· ·20th.· During the hours our investigators monitored the

·3· ·establishment had no violations.

·4· · · · · · · ·ABRA investigators are not qualified to

·5· ·address real property values so that was not addressed

·6· ·in the report.

·7· · · · · · · ·Residential parking, Capitol Market is

·8· ·located near D.C. Metrobus transportation.· In fact,

·9· ·there's a Metrobus stop right outside of Capitol Market.

10· ·There's -- on Channing Street NE is Zone 5 permit

11· ·holders, and two hour parking is available Monday

12· ·through Friday 7 to 8:30.· On-street parking is also

13· ·available on North Capitol Street Monday through Friday

14· ·before 4 p.m. and after 6 p.m.

15· · · · · · · ·ABRA investigators observed heavy traffic on

16· ·North Capitol Street, but pedestrian traffic in the area

17· ·was light.· I contacted MPD for calls for service, but I

18· ·did not receive back from them.· They said that they're

19· ·changing some things down there, and it takes some time

20· ·to get me that information so I have not received it.

21· ·That's it, sir.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do we have any
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·1· ·questions for the -- from The Board for Mr. Peru?· Yes,

·2· ·Ms. Miller.

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Good afternoon, Mr. Peru.

·4· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· Good afternoon, ma'am.

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· I just couldn't hear totally

·6· ·what -- what you said about Mr. Vining, whether you

·7· ·spoke to him afterwards because you said you couldn't

·8· ·reach him when you did this report.

·9· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· Correct.· No, I did not

10· ·speak with him.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· You didn't?

12· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· Correct.· Yes.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· So there's nothing to

14· ·add?

15· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· Yes.· Yes.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Thank you.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Are you done,

18· ·Ms. Miller?

19· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Yes.· Thank you.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Any -- yes,

21· ·Mr. Short.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Good afternoon, Investigator.
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·1· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· Good afternoon, sir.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· When you did the analysis of

·3· ·this class change application can you give us briefly

·4· ·what the community surrounding it comprises of.

·5· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· The -- the community is

·6· ·strictly residences surrounding the -- the

·7· ·establishment.· The closest -- there's only one other

·8· ·grocery store up -- up the street.· You know, North

·9· ·Capitol Street NE is obviously a main thorough

10· ·throughout the city, a lot of traffic -- vehicle

11· ·traffic.· Very light pedestrian traffic when we were out

12· ·there.· The neighborhood was quiet.· Every time that I

13· ·visited, whether it was nighttime or daytime, the

14· ·neighborhood was quiet.· I didn't see much -- much

15· ·traffic at all, maybe it's zoned parking, maybe it's

16· ·just the location.· But it's -- it's -- you know,

17· ·there -- there's not much -- not much around there

18· ·really activity-wise is what I -- what I observed.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· But this is just a question to

20· ·you.· Do you think a class change would change any of

21· ·that?

22· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· Honestly I don't believe
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·1· ·so.· I think that we -- I think by him keeping the

·2· ·grocery and -- and still servicing the community I think

·3· ·that neighborhood, there's nothing out there.· There's

·4· ·no liquor stores out there to purchase spirits.· So I

·5· ·don't -- I don't see that having a big affect in that

·6· ·area.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Okay.· Thanks for your report.

·8· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· Yes, sir.

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Silverstein.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Could you tell us,

11· ·Investigator, about the visits that you might have made

12· ·to the area as part of this investigation, whether you

13· ·noticed anything in terms of heavy litter, any

14· ·violations, any -- any issues?

15· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· No.· Every -- all the

16· ·times that I was there -- and other investigators

17· ·visited as well during different times -- I never -- you

18· ·know, we -- we see a lot of different liquor stores

19· ·or -- or grocery stores even Class Bs in the city that

20· ·have a lot of trash and stuff around them.· But there

21· ·was no -- no visible signs of trash.· No -- no one was

22· ·loitering out front which is a common problem in -- in
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·1· ·the district.· I didn't see anybody loitering.  I

·2· ·didn't -- I didn't really -- there wasn't -- wasn't much

·3· ·going on.· It was -- it was pretty quiet.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Any ABRA violations?

·5· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· No.· No, sir.· No

·6· ·violations were noted or observed.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Thank you.· No further

·8· ·questions, sir.

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Can I just ask a follow up?

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Sure, Ms. Miller.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Mr. Peru, I just wanted

12· ·to ask you -- I -- I think you said something like you

13· ·didn't think that the A license would attract people

14· ·because there aren't any liquor stores out there.

15· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· No.· I think you would

16· ·attract people to purchase spirits.· I don't -- for the

17· ·business I think it will be good.· I don't think it's

18· ·going to attract anything different based on the

19· ·neighborhood than it does now.

20· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· So my question is -- and

21· ·I know it's kind of speculative anyway.· But if -- if

22· ·there wasn't something there before and there is
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·1· ·something there now, why wouldn't it attract more people

·2· ·because it had something new?

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· There's a B there now.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· No.· I know there's a B there.

·5· ·But I mean because would it attract more people who want

·6· ·the As, the spirits?

·7· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· I'm -- I'm solely basing

·8· ·on my experience.

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Yes.

10· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· I can't determine that

11· ·neighborhood and how it's going to respond --

12· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Right.

13· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· -- or react.· I know

14· ·that both the B stores that are in -- a few blocks apart

15· ·do not have anybody loitering in front of them.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.

17· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· And that's -- that's

18· ·usually a number one to -- to me when I'm driving

19· ·through neighborhoods northeast, southeast, northwest,

20· ·southwest I'm always looking at these A and B stores.

21· ·And you can kind of get a determination about the crowds

22· ·that are hanging out and what traffic is coming through
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·1· ·there by the people loitering in front of these stores.

·2· ·I do not observe that.· So I don't -- I don't see -- to

·3· ·me that -- that's the neighborhood.· Usually that's --

·4· ·people that live in that neighborhood are the ones that

·5· ·are hanging out and loitering.· Maybe that happens.· On

·6· ·my visits I did not see it.· So I don't -- based on what

·7· ·I've observed owner that I don't see that a A is going

·8· ·to change that, but that -- that's an opinion.

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· But that -- that's very

10· ·helpful.· Thank you.

11· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· You're welcome.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Any

13· ·other -- no -- no further questions by The Board?· It's

14· ·now your opportunity to ask questions of the

15· ·investigator based on his report or his testimony.· Do

16· ·you have any questions you want to ask?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· I don't have no questions at

18· ·all.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I'm sorry?

20· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· I don't have no questions at

21· ·all.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· You don't have any
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·1· ·questions?

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· No.

·3· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Thanks.· All right.

·4· ·Thanks.· Mr. Vining, your -- your opportunity to ask

·5· ·questions to the investigator of the report on his

·6· ·testimony.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Yes, I have a couple brief.

·8· ·You stated that the area surrounding the store was

·9· ·primarily residential?

10· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· Yes, sir.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Would it be more correct to say

12· ·that it is exclusively residential?

13· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· Sure.· You can use the

14· ·word exclusive.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Okay.· Are you aware of the

16· ·city approved and funded community center for the

17· ·McMillan Park development that would be -- construction

18· ·for which would be starting in January 2017 directly

19· ·across the street from the store at that bus stop at the

20· ·corner of Channing and North Capitol Street?

21· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· I'm aware there's a

22· ·project planned for the future.· I -- I don't know what
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·1· ·the plans for the project are.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· You're not aware that it is

·3· ·fully funded and it has received all the entitlements?

·4· ·You're not aware of that?

·5· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· I -- the -- I looked at

·6· ·what currently is in place.· There's a lot of projects

·7· ·that have been funded and -- and proposed in D.C. that

·8· ·have not come to fruition.· So I can't base on my

·9· ·evaluation of a neighborhood about what is to come, and

10· ·I did not assess that.· Correct.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· But does the store currently

12· ·have any dedicated parking?· You described the street

13· ·parking.· But is -- does the store have any dedicated

14· ·parking?

15· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· No, sir.· No dedicated.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· The call that you placed to me

17· ·on -- on the 17th I remember receiving a call from Laura

18· ·Jackson saying Jason Peru of ABRA is trying to contact

19· ·you.· I did not receive -- I was in West Virginia that

20· ·entire day.· I -- when you returned back to Washington

21· ·around midnight on the 17th I had both a voicemail

22· ·message and a landline message and returned that call
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·1· ·immediately.· I think it would have been the early hours

·2· ·of Saturday the 18th.· Do you recall receiving a

·3· ·voicemail message from me?· I remember it was your -- it

·4· ·said this is Jason Peru, and I left a message.· Do you

·5· ·recall receiving that?

·6· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· No, I do not.· That --

·7· ·that was my day off, and I apologize if I didn't get

·8· ·your message.· So --

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Is there anything that I could

10· ·have done had we been able contact that would have aided

11· ·your report?

12· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· Well, I was -- I was

13· ·calling you, sir, to determine what your issues were and

14· ·-- regarding the -- the protest.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Do you -- do you feel that it

16· ·is negatively -- puts a negative view on Stronghold's

17· ·position or the accuracy of your report to have not

18· ·included that because by chance we couldn't meet up by

19· ·phone?

20· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· I believe that you can

21· ·present your case and the same issues that I could not

22· ·get from Ms. Jackson or yourself today to The Board.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Many members of the Stronghold

·2· ·community with their concerns about the ambient

·3· ·conditions around the store, their concerns go between

·4· ·Douglas Street and Bryant Street and that alley behind

·5· ·the store.· Could you describe the perimeter of the area

·6· ·that you were describing on your visits.· When was it,

·7· ·the 11th of June?· Did it include the alley as far down

·8· ·at Bryant to the south and Douglas to the north?

·9· · · · · · · ·INVESTIGATOR PERU:· No.· I -- I did not go

10· ·to the alley of those streets.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Thank you.· Those are -- those

12· ·are all the questions I had.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Thank

14· ·you.· All right.· Any further questions by The Board?

15· ·Thank you, Mr. Peru, for your testimony.· You can step

16· ·down.· All right.

17· · · · · · · ·Now it's the applicant's opportunity to

18· ·present its case in -- in theory.· So let me -- who was

19· ·going to speak?· Can you stand up please, sir.· Can you

20· ·raise your right hand.· Do you swear or affirm to tell

21· ·the truth and nothing but the truth?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· I do.
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And please speak up,

·2· ·sir, so we can help you -- we can hear -- hear.· So tell

·3· ·us about your -- how you're presenting your case, sir.

·4· ·I don't know, sir, about how to turn up the volume.

·5· ·That's one of the reasons I -- I tell --

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Is this -- is this my turn

·7· ·or --

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yeah.· Why don't you

·9· ·sit.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· No problem.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, you can sit

12· ·over there.· There's a microphone that -- that will --

13· ·sure.· And speak into the microphone please, sir.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· If you could begin by

15· ·identifying yourself for the record.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Okay.· My name is

17· ·Mebrahtialen Gebrkidan.· I'm the manager of the Capitol

18· ·Market.· I'm presenting the case, whatever he left --

19· ·whatever left from me he can --

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· He got sworn in?

21· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes, I did.· I swore

22· ·him in when he was sitting right there.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Oh, okay.

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Go ahead.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· He can also just incorporate

·4· ·things that I left.· Okay.· We just applied for the --

·5· ·for the first time that we told -- applied the license

·6· ·for -- to liquor license which is A is like he said

·7· ·since that time that we come to the store to -- we -- we

·8· ·just took over the ownership in 2013 we just -- we start

·9· ·changing the -- the store because it was like in one

10· ·shelf, and we did a lot of stuff inside.· So once we

11· ·done that one and then they keep asking, the customers,

12· ·if we can incorporate or just include the liquor to --

13· ·to get their service instead of going maybe miles to get

14· ·the thing from the neighbor -- from the neighborhood as

15· ·well as from the -- from the patrons that stop by and

16· ·get their service from the store.· Then we just didn't

17· ·think about that one.· And then after a while we just --

18· ·when we find out that it's possible, then we start our

19· ·application.· Once we started the application then

20· ·Ms. Jackson came to me and you guys are doing this kind

21· ·of things?· Yes.· Okay.· Just we're checking.· She just

22· ·came and she say hi.· And after -- I don't know exactly
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·1· ·the time.· She invites -- she invite us to an -- every

·2· ·Monday meeting they have the Stronghold Civic

·3· ·Association meeting.· Then the -- the main concern at

·4· ·that time was listen, the community needs the service.

·5· ·We have a lot of seniors that they don't want to go far,

·6· ·but just so they want -- they want to get the service

·7· ·from here.· Yes, Ms. Jackson.· Not only Ms. Jackson, but

·8· ·on the every -- I -- we had two opportunities to be in

·9· ·the meeting of her Monday meeting with the Stronghold

10· ·Civic Association.· Then we -- we tried to explain

11· ·the -- the [inaudible 40:08] they have.· So no -- it's

12· ·not like -- even for us it's not beneficially to stop

13· ·the grocery stuffs and just bring on the liquor.· It's

14· ·not -- we are not confident enough to survive with that

15· ·kind of thing.· So I told her first whatever change we

16· ·do we take in consideration the -- the community, the

17· ·need of the community first.· Just we don't only think

18· ·about us and to get some money and to just go.· No.· If

19· ·we are doing business, we are doing business with the

20· ·community.· So we don't want something that [inaudible

21· ·40:42] the community.· We -- we need the -- the liquor

22· ·just to incorporate to try to develop the business,
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·1· ·that's all.· Then so we -- there is some kind of

·2· ·official -- I think all the issues they present is the

·3· ·same.· We discuss it in -- in a friendly way, and it

·4· ·was -- it was good.· And they give us some

·5· ·recommendations, and we just continue I think the

·6· ·thing -- the mediation and stuff.· But then we were

·7· ·waiting for them because their stand was -- on the case

·8· ·their stand was the protest hearing -- to go to protest

·9· ·and pending settlement.· So we've been waiting for them

10· ·if we can settle some kind of way with them instead of

11· ·going to settlement, but unfortunately it was not

12· ·possible.· And then we just came to present our cases

13· ·clearly and without misinforming what -- just to -- to

14· ·tell what we have, who -- what we are, and how we are

15· ·operating and just to see the -- the decision of the --

16· ·The Board, if it's -- if it is qualified.· So the --

17· ·some of the issues that have been raised on that time --

18· ·on the two Monday's meeting with them was -- it was --

19· ·it's going to be a lot of traffic and some of them, we

20· ·should not put -- we've been kind of agreeing on the

21· ·case because we even just reach not to put the -- that

22· ·the -- the sign of liquor.· So oh, no problem.· We would
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·1· ·be -- we would happy if it is because we -- we try not

·2· ·to happen bad things, anything.· But just if you guys

·3· ·don't like the liquor, just we can substitute with the

·4· ·spirit.· So -- and also we -- they raised like traffic.

·5· ·Of course, the -- we -- we cannot deny that everybody

·6· ·know that the North Capitol Street is -- they have

·7· ·traffic like in rush hour times.· But the rush hour we

·8· ·have is between four and six.· So it is -- it's

·9· ·connected with the -- the traffic and the parking is the

10· ·same -- the same thing.· I mean if -- if it is traffic,

11· ·there's going to be parking problem, that's what they're

12· ·referring for.· So what we -- we just -- our response

13· ·was of course we don't have control on the traffic.· But

14· ·just the only control we could -- we could do is on the

15· ·parking.· And the parking in that area, we cannot

16· ·park -- or we could not create something -- just it's

17· ·plain traffic -- I mean plain road.· So the only thing

18· ·we could is we -- I wish -- we were wishing to have a

19· ·lot of customers but try not to make them stop -- I mean

20· ·take some time on the store.· Just we give them a fast

21· ·service and just let them go instead of and then waiting

22· ·somebody for parking or trouble for parking.· So that's
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·1· ·what our -- our response for that one.· And it was --

·2· ·they say that it was a loitering problem too.· It might

·3· ·happen.· I'm in -- it sometimes is very hard even

·4· ·from -- from the -- from the member of the civic

·5· ·association -- the Stronghold Civic Association, like

·6· ·the loitering -- to avoid the loitering problem we could

·7· ·do it just -- we're going to tell them that -- friendly

·8· ·to move from that.· But if that -- if somebody don't

·9· ·want to move, just we can even call the police and

10· ·get -- to let them know that it's not allowed.· So even

11· ·from them they were just telling us as long as the

12· ·police -- okay, it's not friendly way.· Even nobody in

13· ·that area as -- as -- as far as today is like strongly

14· ·tell you that I cannot move stuff like that.· So I think

15· ·if they see -- if they see people -- if they see people,

16· ·I cannot that no, you guys, you didn't see people, I

17· ·cannot say that they might see.· But the -- the thing is

18· ·that we can't control it right now because I have -- we

19· ·have no cameras outside.· So if we are -- if we are

20· ·inside, they -- they might see people out in outside now

21· ·that we can't control it.· Just we're going to put some

22· ·kind of camera viewing onto outside so we can see from

http://www.olenderreporting.com


·1· ·inside just to -- and to tell them they have to leave if

·2· ·it happened like that.· And they were saying that also

·3· ·the security problems, it might -- it might get worse.

·4· ·And they were listing a lot of police complaints and

·5· ·stuff.· I've been in business like from 2008.· And

·6· ·especially on the southeast, northeast side it's like

·7· ·police complaints maybe twice a day or more like you

·8· ·know.· So -- and here they were listing some.· But just

·9· ·-- it happens to robbery.· It might be very personal,

10· ·but just I got to tell you why it happen one -- one

11· ·time.· The thing was that we have the -- the register

12· ·part.· So if you opened the register part, just the

13· ·people who know it that they knew that is what opened

14· ·and they could get the one time.· And the second time --

15· ·once in a while just they came and they -- so they

16· ·tried, but nothing happened.· The -- the -- so they --

17· ·they mentioned I mean like a lot of things -- 2013 up to

18· ·today a lot of like police complaints but it's like

19· ·maybe minor things.· If somebody tried ATM and it didn't

20· ·get the money and explain to him that it's not the right

21· ·way.· It's like this, if you don't agree the only thing

22· ·is just call police and explain to them.· So that kind

http://www.olenderreporting.com


·1· ·of things they just -- they told that it's like the

·2· ·complaint is some kind of problem.· So it's not a big

·3· ·deal that one.· I think this is the things we have.· And

·4· ·when you -- when you apply for the liquor we considered

·5· ·the community and the development of the store.· It

·6· ·may -- the liquor license may help us even to develop

·7· ·more so you can have the service for everybody.· Are you

·8· ·done?· Thank you.· Mr. Efrem, if I have left something

·9· ·to -- to say, I know you can I think.

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· What --

11· ·so what type of products do you currently sell?

12· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Say again.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· What type of products

14· ·do you currently sell in the --

15· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· All groceries -- all

16· ·groceries.· All kind of groceries, beer and wine.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Go,

18· ·Mr. Vining, if you have any questions that you -- you

19· ·want to ask of him.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Pardon?

21· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Oh, I'm sorry.· Do

22· ·you have any questions that you want to ask him based on
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·1· ·the testimony that he just gave?

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Yes.· Your store is the only

·3· ·retail store we've ever had in Stronghold.· It very

·4· ·likely will be the only store we ever have in the

·5· ·Stronghold neighborhood.· We are supportive of the fact

·6· ·that you are a businessman and you have this store, the

·7· ·only store in our neighborhood.· I'd like to ask you as

·8· ·-- of course, as a businessman you're trying to increase

·9· ·your income and increase your business.· I'd like to ask

10· ·you why you have made the decision to apply for a liquor

11· ·license to increase your business as opposed to

12· ·increasing the grocery side of your business?· For

13· ·example, I'm seeing that there is a baby boom in

14· ·Stronghold right now which says not liquor to me but the

15· ·opportunity to sell a whole variety of the things that

16· ·go with babies.· But I'd like to hear your description

17· ·of why you decided that getting a liquor license and

18· ·selling liquor is the best way to improve your business.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.· Like you say, it's --

20· ·it's we cannot deny that once we think that one it just

21· ·-- it's like to increase the business like you say

22· ·exactly.· It's -- so you say why we think about that.
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·1· ·It -- it just from the requests from the customers.· And

·2· ·why we are not including something else?· As -- as long

·3· ·as we can and as long as we get the requests, even we

·4· ·get them in -- in written [inaudible 49:50], whoever

·5· ·customer asks us in the store, then we try to -- to

·6· ·bring it immediately into the store.· So I don't think

·7· ·something that we left from the -- from the request of

·8· ·the customers.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I am noting that in our own

10· ·survey of the neighborhood we found almost -- almost

11· ·universal problems in the community with -- when we

12· ·mentioned that you would continue the same business but

13· ·start selling liquor.· And I'm noting that on your

14· ·Protest Information Form the three pieces of testimony

15· ·that you had from people who said they would like liquor

16· ·for sale there, none of those three live in Stronghold.

17· ·Two live in Bloomingdale, one lives in Edgewood.· And

18· ·I'm wondering if you could describe for us who -- who

19· ·you've spoken to who wants the liquor because I don't

20· ·think we've met them.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Well, me I was requesting --

22· ·I mean I was asking them -- the regular customers,
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·1· ·everyday customers almost.· So I cannot say that this

·2· ·is -- this is from this side and this is -- I don't know

·3· ·the -- the exact of the address.· But just all I know is

·4· ·they lived on that side.· So I cannot say this is a

·5· ·Stronghold or this one is across the street.· So I just

·6· ·-- the regular customers we requested.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Do you have a rough number or

·8· ·some magnitude how -- how many people or how frequent

·9· ·their requests are for -- to sell liquor, any idea that

10· ·you can share with us?

11· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· No.· What we have is like

12· ·the three customers have the -- like a testimony.· But

13· ·I -- I -- I mean once in a while they come and ask you,

14· ·people who live on that side and people who just

15· ·[inaudible 51:49] in -- in that way.· So I -- I cannot

16· ·tell you exact the number of the requests.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Do you think that if you sold

18· ·liquor, that any of your customers for the groceries if

19· ·you would lose them?· I'm asking if -- the balance of

20· ·your business is beer, wine, groceries, other things.

21· ·Do you think that selling liquor would change the

22· ·customers to your store?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· When we -- when we think to

·2· ·apply for that one we -- we didn't think that to lose

·3· ·the -- that part.· Just to bring more, not to -- not to

·4· ·lose the customers we had.· So I cannot consider that

·5· ·one.· What I consider is just to bring more and to give

·6· ·them more service.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· That's it.

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· No more -- no more

·9· ·questions?· All right.· Any questions by The Board?

10· ·Yes, Ms. Miller.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Good afternoon.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Good afternoon.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· I was just wondering if -- if

14· ·you have any parking issues right now with your grocery

15· ·store.· Any -- do people have trouble parking for your

16· ·grocery store?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Well, the -- the parking is

18· ·street parking.· And --

19· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Street, okay.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· And it's not like -- it's

21· ·almost -- almost always is quiet.· It's like -- it's not

22· ·like -- we don't have a lot of flow of customers.· So it
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·1· ·just -- a lot of them are walk-in customers, and the --

·2· ·the people who -- who pass by is just -- they -- they

·3· ·put their cars in front of the store and they leave.

·4· ·It's not like -- I -- I -- it's like -- it's very rare

·5· ·to see two -- two customers with -- with two cars come

·6· ·right there and -- it's not like -- it might happen one

·7· ·time.· But just it's not -- we don't have like a flow of

·8· ·customers or traffic to the store.· It's a quiet store.

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· And can you tell me how

10· ·you handle your trash.· How do you handle your trash

11· ·these --

12· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· The trash, we have twice a

13· ·week, every Friday and Thursday.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· What -- what times?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Early in the morning.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· It depends.· Sometimes they

18· ·come like up -- up to eight, and sometimes they come

19· ·early, 6:00.· And sometimes [inaudible 54:00].

20· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Have you had any

21· ·complaints?· Have you had any complaints about your

22· ·trash?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· No.

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Okay.· That's all.

·3· ·Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· You're welcome.

·5· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Short.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· You were asked some questions

·7· ·earlier about your business model.· And under that same

·8· ·subject what percentage of your business do you sell in

·9· ·beer and wine?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Right now currently?

11· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Yeah.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Well, I don't have the exact

13· ·percentage that I can tell you.· But I can say that

14· ·maybe -- maybe half and half.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· So half your business now is

16· ·wine and beer?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· And half is grocery.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Half is grocery.· Okay.· Thank

19· ·you.· That's all I have, Mr. Chair.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Alberti.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Just roughly.· Just I don't

22· ·have the exact number.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Good afternoon, Mr.

·2· ·Gebrkidan.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yes, sir.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· Hopefully I'm getting

·5· ·close on that.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· You got it.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· All right.· First of all I

·8· ·want to make sure I understood you because this is

·9· ·important to me.· I think you said that you really --

10· ·you're promising to install an exterior camera that will

11· ·allow you to monitor the exterior from inside; is that

12· ·correct?

13· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· All right.· So that's

15· ·something you're committed to doing?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yes.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Great.· What is the busiest

18· ·times of the day for you?

19· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· The busiest days like --

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· The busiest times of the day.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.· The busiest time is

22· ·maybe from 3 to 5.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· From 3 to 5 in the afternoon?

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· How many people -- how

·4· ·many people an hour do you get in the store during those

·5· ·hours?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Maybe -- and it will -- it's

·7· ·-- it's very hard to just to -- to think right now.· But

·8· ·it might be up to -- I can say up to 15 people.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Up to what?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Up to 15 people.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· 15 people an hour?

12· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· That's not very busy.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· That's why -- it's not a

15· ·busy --

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· Where do people park

17· ·during those times?

18· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Well, in the -- in the front

19· ·of store.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· So I'm assuming 3 to 5 you're

21· ·probably getting some people driving up, am I correct,

22· ·because you are on North Capitol Street?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.· Most of them just I

·2· ·think they -- they're walk-in customers.· And the people

·3· ·who stop by we have the -- the -- but North Capitol

·4· ·Street, just they standing there and then there are

·5· ·people that are stopping.· It's not -- they don't --

·6· ·they don't even take like more than -- than two or three

·7· ·minutes.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· So I'm going to go out

·9· ·on a limb here and say they often park illegally because

10· ·it looks like there's no park -- you've got -- you've

11· ·got an area between the corner and the tree that's on

12· ·North Capitol Street where it's no parking, am I

13· ·correct?

14· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yes.· Some of -- some of

15· ·them they come to Channing Street.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Some of them come to Channing

17· ·Street?

18· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Right.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· And how long do they

20· ·stay?· How long do they stay?

21· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· How long do they stay in the

22· ·store?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Yeah.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Maybe like it's just to my

·3· ·-- just five minutes.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· So if you were to sell

·5· ·spirits, what kind of products -- and I'm going to

·6· ·explain my question.· But what kind of products would

·7· ·you -- are you intending to sell?· And by that I mean,

·8· ·you know, spirits -- I'm not asking you whether you're

·9· ·going to sell gin or bourbon.· I'm asking sort of the

10· ·size of containers.· Because I'm sure you're well aware

11· ·there's a large variety of sizes of containers

12· ·everywhere from the two liter bottles down to the

13· ·quarter pints, the miniatures.· All right?

14· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Right.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· So tell me what you would

16· ·envision your store stocking.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Exactly.· It's a -- when I

18· ·tell you right now I'm going to tell you the general.  I

19· ·never been in the liquor business.· So when I tell you

20· ·I'm -- I'm going to tell you like a general thing

21· ·because the only thing that I -- we -- we cannot --

22· ·we're not thinking today is things that the -- the small
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·1· ·that are put in the -- in the (inaudible 58:37) and

·2· ·things.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Uh-huh.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· That's one obviously we

·5· ·cannot put because that one everybody can put and can

·6· ·use them -- so we are -- we're going to avoid that one.

·7· ·But if you tell me the variety that we -- of course we

·8· ·will have -- we would like to have the variety, but the

·9· ·bigger sizes.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I -- I got you.· And you

11· ·actually did a good job of answering my question.· So

12· ·you're -- you're telling us that you really have no

13· ·plans to have smaller containers.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Exactly.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· So in my mind what I envision

16· ·as a small container is someone -- listen, I -- I've

17· ·lived in neighborhoods with liquor stores and lived

18· ·close by so I know what people are putting in their

19· ·pockets.· So -- so this is not an uneducated speculation

20· ·here.· So would you do -- would you sell anything

21· ·smaller than -- smaller than a pint?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· No.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I mean quarter -- there's

·2· ·quarter pints and half pints and they're pretty small.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.· The small one, that's

·4· ·what I -- that's what I'm trying to avoid.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· So -- so are we talking like

·6· ·pints or larger is what you would -- would be --

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Well --

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I mean you're -- you're

·9· ·planning on this so you got to tell me.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.· What I'm thinking is

11· ·-- I don't know exactly the measure, but the small --

12· ·the small like wines or -- I mean the -- the small -- I

13· ·don't know the size.· We -- we are -- we're going to

14· ·avoid things that they put in their pocket, the small

15· ·ones.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· That's what I can tell you.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· All right.· Do you have a lot

19· ·of neighborhood customers coming in?· By -- by that I

20· ·mean people who -- who are walking there to the store.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.· I mean we have the --

22· ·the community.· It's -- it's not -- it's not like -- the
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·1· ·traffic is not like we cannot exaggerate it, but we have

·2· ·people who come in walking from the community.· Right.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· From work.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· From the work?

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Is that what you're saying,

·6· ·people --

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· No.· From the community.

·8· ·From the -- from around there.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· From Stronghold.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I -- you know, I'm looking at

12· ·-- at -- at the maps here and it looks to me like --

13· ·like -- let me try to -- so it's easier if I'm looking

14· ·at this.· It looks to me like a big part of the

15· ·community, like the -- when I look at the surrounding

16· ·community it looks like the -- the most heavily

17· ·residential portion of that community is across North

18· ·Capitol Street --

19· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Uh-huh.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· -- because on -- on the east

21· ·side of North Capitol Street there is -- really isn't

22· ·many houses relative to what's across the street.· So
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·1· ·what community -- do you serve both of those communities

·2· ·on both sides of North Capitol Street?· I mean what's

·3· ·your impression?· Do you -- do you serve the -- the

·4· ·community on the west side as well the community on the

·5· ·east side?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Obviously.· I mean as a --

·7· ·as a businessman I -- whoever come is who will come.· So

·8· ·what we are trying -- we -- we consider about the -- the

·9· ·-- about both sides of the cross streets of North

10· ·Capitol.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· I know that wasn't a

12· ·very good question, but I'll let it go at that.· Thank

13· ·you so much.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· You're welcome.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· That's it.· Thank you.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· I have one follow up.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes, Mr. Short.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Based on Mr. Alberti's question

19· ·about sizes the market that you'll be selling to, what

20· ·-- what ages of the market do you think you'll be

21· ·selling to, the age groups?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Age group?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Yeah.· The age groups you would

·2· ·be selling alcohol to.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Well, it's just all --

·4· ·legally it's like from 21 and up.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Uh-huh.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· So from that one I cannot

·7· ·estimate who is coming.· But it just obviously and to be

·8· ·legally more than 21.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Okay.· This is just a question

10· ·-- a speculative question.· Supposedly all of your

11· ·customers came and wanted small bottles --

12· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· -- small bottles of wine or --

14· ·or small bottles of spirits and you only had the big

15· ·sizes.· Would you change?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· No.· I cannot change.· This

17· ·was -- that's -- and that's (inaudible 1:03) what we are

18· ·doing.· So we -- we're not going to change that one.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Please repeat that.· I -- I

20· ·didn't understand.· You say you're not going to change?

21· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· We're not going to change.

22· ·Yeah.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· So even if your market comes in

·2· ·-- the people that say I want the smaller size, you

·3· ·would change?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.· Actually exactly

·5· ·because that's -- we are thinking that this one is --

·6· ·brings problem or it just affect us.· So whatever affect

·7· ·things even though the market don't come, we're not

·8· ·going to do it.· It's just going to be (inaudible

·9· ·1:03:40) what we say.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Thank you.· That's all I have,

11· ·Mr. Chair.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes, Ms. Miller.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Mr. -- I was wondering if Mr.

14· ·Alberti could identify for the record the map he was

15· ·looking at.· Is it in the record?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I am looking at the map that's

17· ·in the -- I forget what exhibit it is.· In the -- where

18· ·is it?· I've lost it already.· It's in -- it's in the

19· ·investigator's report.· We have two maps.

20· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· And they are Exhibits -- I

22· ·don't know if they're -- Exhibits 5 -- 4 and 5.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Well, I -- I -- I don't

·2· ·see it, but I'm sure that what you're saying is true.  I

·3· ·just thought that the record should -- thank you.

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Any other questions

·5· ·by any of the board members?· All right.· Do you have

·6· ·any further statements that you want to make, sir?

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· The only thing that I can --

·8· ·is -- is already -- we've been like -- you know, the

·9· ·operation of -- one just a little detail on the

10· ·operation of the store.· But we operate -- we -- we have

11· ·a visit like more than five in one month, and all the

12· ·operation was -- I mean all what we did was legally and

13· ·we didn't get any problems.· So since the time that we

14· ·be in store until today we have no problem with the

15· ·operating the legal -- to -- just we operate the -- the

16· ·rules and regulations of ABRA.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any

18· ·questions, sir, to ask him based on the questions that

19· ·were asked by The Board?

20· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I don't think I have any follow

21· ·up.· No, thank you.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· All

http://www.olenderreporting.com


·1· ·right.· You can step down, sir.· Is -- do you have

·2· ·anything else that you want to present?· You can step --

·3· ·step down.· Do you or your general manager, do you guys

·4· ·have anything else, any -- any other things that you

·5· ·want to present to The Board?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Yeah.· I want to say

·7· ·something.

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yeah.· Speak up

·9· ·please.· Tell me what you want to do.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Yeah.· About the question he

11· ·was asking, what kind of --

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Why don't you raise

13· ·your right hand.· Why don't you raise your right hand

14· ·please.· Do you swear or affirm to tell the truth and

15· ·nothing but the truth?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· I do.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Okay.· You can sit.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Okay.· My name is Efrem.  I

19· ·just want to say something about the question he got is

20· ·what kind of liquor do you want to sell?· Like as he say

21· ·I have the same experience, I never been in a liquor

22· ·store.· But as the idea for the customer asking for

http://www.olenderreporting.com


·1· ·liquor is I can say okay, I'm -- I'm an (inaudible

·2· ·1:07:09) person.· Because as I said I don't really have

·3· ·experience about it.· Always you think is what if you

·4· ·start a new thing, you take it from customer like

·5· ·they're going to ask you what they need.· And still now

·6· ·even in the grocery they ask you okay, can I get this

·7· ·one if you go to the market even you never had this one,

·8· ·but somebody need it.· So you get it from the market for

·9· ·-- for him.· So as my experience that's how it goes like

10· ·corner stores.· That's what I want to say.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Is there

12· ·anything else that you want to present?

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· I think he -- he said it all.

14· ·Thank you.

15· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Do you

16· ·guys have any documents that you want The Board to

17· ·consider that you would like to -- to -- to introduce as

18· ·part of the evidence?

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Actually we -- we already

20· ·submitted.· We have the congratulations certificate for

21· ·2015 and '16, the operation hours, and --

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· But can you tell us
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·1· ·-- can you -- why don't you go look at the documents and

·2· ·tell me the documents that you --

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Oh, yeah.· Sure.

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· -- The Board -- you

·5· ·want to -- you want to -- to -- to be introduced into

·6· ·the record.· So tell me what the -- go to your documents

·7· ·and let me know what the documents are please so we can

·8· ·identify them for the record.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Sorry.

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· So tell me what the

11· ·documents are.· So these are part of your PIF.· So tell

12· ·me what the documents are.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· This is for my operation

14· ·certificate like I have no complaint from the ABRA Board

15· ·like in hours or selling something illegal.

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Okay.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· For underage.

18· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· So --

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Can you -- can -- all

21· ·right.· Can -- so why do you want us to -- why do you

22· ·want us -- why are you wanting that to be a part of the
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·1· ·record?

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Why I want to be is that it's

·3· ·-- if you say like if you do business also if we want to

·4· ·be with the community if that means -- I'm just saying

·5· ·it is I haven't -- we haven't done anything bad for the

·6· ·-- bad service.· It's not like service -- we will serve

·7· ·the customer but something illegal for -- doing for the

·8· ·neighborhood.

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· So this is for 2015 and 2016.

11· ·I have two --

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· -- I get from the ABRA office.

14· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· So can you show that

15· ·to Mr. -- to Mr. -- have you seen these documents, Mr.

16· ·Kline, or do you have a problem with them -- with them

17· ·being introduced as part of the record?

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· This is 2016.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· So do you have -- do

20· ·you have any problems with those documents?

21· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· No problem.· You're asking --

22· ·we are fine with them being admitted into the record.
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Both so admitted.

·2· ·What other document that -- what other document you want

·3· ·to be admitted as part of the record, sir?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· That's all.· Also I have this

·5· ·one from my witness and from the ABRA investigators.

·6· ·It's the -- the (inaudible 02:42) to sell July 31 until

·7· ·June 20, they've been coming like eight times.· They

·8· ·have all the time and the -- the date in there.· They

·9· ·have no violation observed.

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Okay.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· It's eight -- eight times.· So

12· ·it's May 31 to June 20, 2016.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Have you

14· ·-- have you seen a copy of this document?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Yes.· Okay.· Was it in Jason

16· ·Peru's report I believe?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Yes.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yes.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yeah, I know.· And

20· ·there -- there is a witness statement that -- that I

21· ·think is a part of your PIF.· What's that?· Is that --

22· ·is that a document that you're trying -- you're trying
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·1· ·for the -- you want The Board to -- to consider, sir?

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Yes.· Yes.

·3· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And where is that

·4· ·document and can you identify it and who -- who's the

·5· ·person who wrote this -- this document?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Which one, the three witness I

·7· ·have?

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· The statements that

·9· ·-- that you want The Board to consider, sir.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Oh, okay.· I'm sorry.· Even

11· ·this person.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And what is -- what

13· ·is that, sir?

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· This is one of my witness.

15· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And who is this

16· ·witness and why is he not here today to testify?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Oh, he say he cannot be today

18· ·because he is at work.· So he's not to -- to (inaudible

19· ·04:31) 1:30.· I told him I have 1:30 appointment, but he

20· ·said he cannot make it but he can -- he can write a

21· ·letter.· He is one of the neighbors.· He say he lives

22· ·there, 1160 (inaudible 4:48).
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, you're telling

·2· ·me what the document is, sir.· So I don't know what it

·3· ·is.· So --

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Oh, he's -- he's support the

·5· ·-- he say he's one of the people asking for liquor.· And

·6· ·when I asked him I applied and I told him I have

·7· ·appointment today.· So he -- he wrote me the letter to

·8· ·support have a liquor sold in this neighborhood.· He say

·9· ·we -- we -- we don't have the liquor around.· He say we

10· ·need to have one.· I live here -- as he say in my letter

11· ·he lives there more than 60 years and he doesn't have no

12· ·liquor around.· So he says they need a liquor store.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Can you show that to

14· ·Mr. Kline.· Have you seen this document, sir?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· This is the -- I believe this

16· ·is a statement that is in the PIF --

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· -- from Michael -- a letter

19· ·from Michael Mullen (ph).· If that's what's in the PIF,

20· ·we have seen that.

21· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any

22· ·objection to it being part of the record?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· No objection.

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Okay.· So moved.· Any

·3· ·-- is that it, sir?· Do you have any other documents?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Yes.· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· No.· I said do you

·6· ·have any other documents?

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Yeah.· I have this -- this --

·8· ·the -- from the witness.

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· What is it?· So

10· ·what's the document, sir?

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· It's also support Capitol

12· ·Market to have liquor license.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And tell me what the

14· ·document is, sir.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· This is a written witness

16· ·letter.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· With explain that the -- the

18· ·responsibility of the owners, the way we operate, and we

19· ·are responsible to handle when we get the liquor permit.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And who is it that

21· ·wrote this document?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Mr. Davis.
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And why is not -- why

·2· ·is Mr. Davis not here today to testify?

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· We actually -- it's not like

·4· ·what we told just to get -- to get the -- the -- the

·5· ·testimonies from written.· So we didn't bring -- tell or

·6· ·push them to -- to come.· So we might come, but just it

·7· ·was like the case.· We didn't -- we didn't know that

·8· ·exactly to be in person.

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· We thought that's it's enough

11· ·in written form.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Kline, do you

13· ·have a problem with this -- with introducing -- with

14· ·this document be a part of the document -- the witness?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· No objection.

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· The -- I'm sorry.

17· ·All right.· Okay.· So moved.· All right.· So is that it,

18· ·nothing else?

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· No.· Thank you.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Do you

21· ·have any other testimony to present?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· No.· Thanks.
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· So do you rest your

·2· ·case meaning that you're -- you have nothing else to say

·3· ·then they can have an opportunity to present their case

·4· ·now?

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· We all -- I think it will be

·6· ·done and -- and in response of any question just we can

·7· ·--

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· So one --

·9· ·they're going to -- they're going to call their witness,

10· ·and then you'll have an opportunity to -- whoever

11· ·testify, to ask them questions based on what they

12· ·testify.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Okay.· Thanks.

14· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· All

15· ·right.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Did we do cross exam for him?

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· For who?

18· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Mr. Efrem.· We did?

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yeah.

20· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.

21· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· He was up --

22· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· I know he was up there.· I just
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·1· ·don't remember the questions.

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yeah.· He was -- he

·3· ·was there for a very long time.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I think he was on the

·6· ·hot seat for a very long time.· All right.· Thank you.

·7· ·All right.· So yeah.· Mr. Short had asked him -- but

·8· ·remember I had started to ask the question first, then

·9· ·Mr. --

10· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Oh, he didn't testify.· Okay.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Okay.

12· ·Who is your first witness, sir?

13· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I would like to call as our

14· ·first witness Ms. Laura Jackson, the president of the

15· ·Stronghold Civic Association if I could.

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Ms.

17· ·Jackson, can you please go to the witness stand and

18· ·stand and raise your right hand please.· Can you raise

19· ·your right.· Do you swear or affirm to tell the truth

20· ·and nothing but the truth?

21· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I do.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Thank
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·1· ·you.· So just start off by asking her to tell what her

·2· ·name is and for her to identify herself for the record

·3· ·please.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Ms. Jackson, would you please

·5· ·identify yourself for the record and give your title

·6· ·within the Stronghold Civic Association.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.· My name is Laura

·8· ·Jackson, and I am the president of Stronghold Civic

·9· ·Association.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Is that -- is that an elected

11· ·position, president of the Stronghold Civic Association?

12· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes, it is.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· So I just ask my first

14· ·question?

15· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· You can now ask her

16· ·whatever questions you want to ask her, sir.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Ms. Jackson, as the president

18· ·of the Stronghold Civic Association could you tell us

19· ·whatever is useful in your mind for us to hear about the

20· ·license application we're considering today.· Start --

21· ·think back to when you first learned about there was a

22· ·license application and what did you and the officers of
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·1· ·the Stronghold Civic Association do.· And please as

·2· ·appropriate tell me about your interactions with the

·3· ·community and the store owners.· I'm trying to get a

·4· ·picture for the role of the Stronghold Civic Association

·5· ·in this application, anything that you think is useful

·6· ·for us to know.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Sure.· To begin, although the

·8· ·posted date for the application was January the 15th,

·9· ·2016, we were not aware of the application for Capitol

10· ·Market to change license to sell liquor until our ANC

11· ·Commissioner Barnes alerted me after the February 1st

12· ·monthly meeting.· We meet on the first Monday of each

13· ·month.· The deadline to file the protest was February

14· ·the 29th, which was before the next scheduled civic

15· ·association meeting on March the 1st.· I was not

16· ·familiar with the ABRA process.· And so I contacted Ms.

17· ·Sarah Fashbaugh here for information and guidance.· She

18· ·informed me of the process including that the civic

19· ·association must be incorporated through DRCA in order

20· ·to be a party of a protest.· That was done immediately,

21· ·and all residents of Stronghold were notified of the

22· ·application of the market.· We had a flyer at every
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·1· ·single --

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Mr. Vining, please don't

·3· ·do that.· I can't hear her.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· I'm sorry.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· A flyer was distributed to

·7· ·every single house in the community.· A e-mail was sent

·8· ·to the civic association membership, and it was also

·9· ·posted on the social media next door which most of the

10· ·neighbors subscribe to about the emergency meeting that

11· ·would be held on February the 18th to discuss this

12· ·important matter which would affect the community.· We

13· ·were neutral in our position.· We never said we were for

14· ·or against.· We invited everyone to come.· I did visit

15· ·the store and I met with one of the owners and invited

16· ·him to attend the meeting also so that he can meet the

17· ·neighbors and address any questions that they had.

18· · · · · · · ·I did not see the two required ABRA notices

19· ·as required by law.· I asked the owner about this, and

20· ·he directed me to a sign at the bottom panel on the

21· ·inside front door which stays open when the store is

22· ·open.· The sign is not visible at all from the outside
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·1· ·when the door -- when the store is open or closed.· When

·2· ·the door is closed an advertisement on the gate covers

·3· ·the notice.· There were not any notices posted outside

·4· ·of the building for neighbors to be informed of this

·5· ·application.· The customers who frequent the store were

·6· ·asked if they noticed the signs.· And although they come

·7· ·into the store regular, they never noticed the posters

·8· ·either.

·9· · · · · · · ·On February the 12th prior to the emergency

10· ·hearing Commissioner Barnes sent an agreement for me to

11· ·sign.· I responded with a e-mail reiterating the process

12· ·which I thought we had all agreed to.· The first

13· ·paragraph -- included in the first paragraph of this

14· ·e-mail I had that I'm confused about proposing to rush

15· ·submitting a final agreement to the ANC body prior to

16· ·the communication or discussion with the community

17· ·especially those neighbors in close proximity of the

18· ·store.· And it listed the steps that we had planned to

19· ·take which I thought everyone was in agreement.· And I

20· ·have the SCA officers have been very involved in this

21· ·process including talking with the neighbors and

22· ·collecting questions and concerns.· I do not have the
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·1· ·authority to enter into an agreement without the

·2· ·approval of SCA officers and the entire body.· There is

·3· ·still the outstanding issues of the signs not being

·4· ·posted in a conspicuous place as required.· If ABRA

·5· ·determines that the neighbors weren't properly notified,

·6· ·it may delay the process.· We want each neighbor to make

·7· ·a informed decision.· And that was prior to the meeting.

·8· · · · · · · ·So we did hold the meeting on February the

·9· ·18th for the neighbors to meet with the store owners and

10· ·ask questions.· Ms. Fashbaugh agreed to attend our

11· ·regular meeting on March the 1st as a follow up and

12· ·discuss about ABRA and the process and our options,

13· ·which she did and she did an excellent.

14· · · · · · · ·We did vote to protest per an agreement

15· ·using the protest map which is included as Document 12

16· ·in -- in our exhibits.· We used this as our guide.· It

17· ·has always been the understanding that if an agreement

18· ·is not reached, that we would proceed to the next step

19· ·of the process which has now led us to this hearing.  A

20· ·committee was formed to get input from all the neighbors

21· ·especially those live in close proximity of the store.

22· ·Committee members will discuss their findings in their
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·1· ·testimony.· There was not any support within Stronghold

·2· ·for the store as it now exists.· Some neighbors

·3· ·expressed that if the store made changes that they would

·4· ·be more open to agreement.

·5· · · · · · · ·Kate Young who is a member of the committee

·6· ·and will testify later and I met with the owner on April

·7· ·the 24th and discussed at that time that there was not

·8· ·any support for the store as it is now.· We gave

·9· ·suggestions and even offered our own time and labor to

10· ·help paint and spruce up the store so the neighbors

11· ·could see that at least that the store was doing --

12· ·making some effort to do some of the things that they

13· ·addressed in the meeting that they attended.· Efrem said

14· ·that he would talk to the other owner and get back to

15· ·us.· We did not hear from them and we assumed that they

16· ·had withdrew the application when they did not show up

17· ·for the ABRA status hearing.

18· · · · · · · ·For the record some of the same concerns

19· ·that were expressed in the presence of both the owners

20· ·and our ANC commissioner are included in the 2002

21· ·agreement which is now in force but are not included in

22· ·the recent -- recently approved ANC agreement.· Those
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·1· ·same concerns were in 2002.· The ABRA protest map and

·2· ·the information from ABRA's website was used as a guide

·3· ·during the process.· We have completed every requirement

·4· ·on time as required.· A copy of the roadmap noting

·5· ·compliance by both parties is included in the exhibits.

·6· ·Starting from the very beginning of the process Capitol

·7· ·Market was not in compliance because the notices were

·8· ·not posted for 45 days as required by law.· All parties

·9· ·were repeatedly told that if any party does not attend

10· ·the hearing the application or protest would be

11· ·dismissed.· The Stronghold Civic Association showed up,

12· ·and other parties were absent.· The case was dismissed

13· ·as it should have been.

14· · · · · · · ·The appeal for reinstatement was granted

15· ·based on the excuse that the other party forgot about

16· ·the hearing.· We are now here to ask the ABRA Board to

17· ·vote with the concerned neighbors who live in the

18· ·Stronghold community where the store is located.· Please

19· ·consider that neither the owners or any of the ANCs who

20· ·support the substantial change to sell alcohol in this

21· ·residential neighborhood live in the vicinity that would

22· ·be affected.
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·1· · · · · · · ·And I would also like to say that we went

·2· ·around and talked to the neighbors and we asked the

·3· ·neighbors what they think.· We were on a walkthrough

·4· ·with the ANC about different repairs that needed to be

·5· ·done in the neighborhood and talked to one of the

·6· ·neighbors who live three doors down and -- and I asked

·7· ·her what does she think about it.· She asked me what did

·8· ·I think about it.· And I told her that it's more

·9· ·important for what she thinks about it because she's the

10· ·one that has to live so close by.

11· · · · · · · ·And as an example I told her -- I said just

12· ·like when there was the armed robbery at the store I was

13· ·-- someone had to tell me about it.· She said which one?

14· ·She said there's been three in the last few months.· And

15· ·so this affects the community, I mean its residents.· If

16· ·it's getting robbed and -- I won't.· Let me stop.· I'm

17· ·getting personal.

18· · · · · · · ·But it needs to be -- we're asking you to --

19· ·to listen to the community and -- and deny this

20· ·application.

21· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Do you

22· ·have any other questions that you want to ask her?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Yes.· Is this on?

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Is there a green

·3· ·light -- is there a green light in front of you, sir?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Yes.

·5· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yeah.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Ms. Jackson, you talked about

·7· ·the flyers that were hand distributed to all 270 houses

·8· ·in Stronghold.· Holding in my hand one is Thursday --

·9· ·about the Thursday, February 18th meeting -- emergency

10· ·meeting concerning the application of Capitol Market.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Is this what you were talking

13· ·about there?

14· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· And there's three others.· This

16· ·is all Exhibit 1 that was presented here.· These are --

17· ·along with these flyers hand delivered to each home in

18· ·Stronghold you mentioned e-mail and next door

19· ·correspondence.· I take it that you have some confidence

20· ·that the word was gotten out to everybody in Stronghold

21· ·that this is a concern?

22· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· And I see in this -- if you --

·2· ·I'm asking if you agree with me or not, these flyers

·3· ·present a completely neutral position, we would like to

·4· ·hear from the residents of Stronghold what is your

·5· ·position.· I don't see anywhere in here that it says SCA

·6· ·opposes this license.· It seems to say to me come tell

·7· ·us what you think just as you said in the talking with

·8· ·the neighbor.· Is that a correct conclusion from looking

·9· ·at these?

10· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.· We wanted -- we -- we

11· ·wanted people to make a informed decision, that's why we

12· ·had the meetings.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· On that basis I'd like -- this

14· ·is Exhibit 1.

15· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Uh-huh.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I'd like to make sure -- affirm

17· ·that this is in the record.· Can I?

18· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Can you show him

19· ·Exhibit 1 please.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Pardon?· Oh, these are the

21· ·flyers.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Have you seen that
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·1· ·document before, sir?

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Yes.

·3· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any

·4· ·objection about this document being moved into -- to

·5· ·evidence?· I'm sorry?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· No.· Thank you.

·7· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· It's so

·8· ·moved.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I have in my hand here February

10· ·29, 2016 the original protest letter from the Stronghold

11· ·Civic Association addressed to ABRA.· Is this what you

12· ·were referring to as the first -- the first Stronghold

13· ·action concerning this?

14· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I see comments in your letter

16· ·here about the problem about learning about the -- the

17· ·application that you referred to; is that correct?· Does

18· ·this reflect what you were saying?

19· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I also have in my hand here is

21· ·our Exhibit 3 which is a copy of the letter from the

22· ·Ward 5 Councilman Kenya McDuffie to the ABRA which
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·1· ·raises some of the same concerns.· Are you familiar with

·2· ·Council Member McDuffie's letter?

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes, I am.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Do you agree with the contents

·5· ·of this letter and do you see a similarity between the

·6· ·Stronghold division and his letter?

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I would like to --

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· He is a resident of that

10· ·neighborhood.· He lives within a block of the liquor

11· ·store.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Please speak up.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I said Council Member McDuffie

14· ·of Ward 5 is a member of our neighborhood.· He lives

15· ·about a block away from the store.· And he too never saw

16· ·the sign alerting the community that there was a

17· ·application pending.· He did not know until he received

18· ·-- until this came up.· (Inaudible 22:02).

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I -- I don't -- I'm

20· ·not seeing that document.· So was that document

21· ·disclosed previously to us?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Which -- which document?
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· The document that

·2· ·you're referring to.· The document from -- you said from

·3· ·the council member.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· It's in here.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Our Exhibit Number 3 --

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· He sent a -- he wrote a

·7· ·letter.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING: -- sent in with our PIF.

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Okay.· All right.· So

10· ·you're -- okay.· So you're -- you're trying -- what are

11· ·you -- what are you asking to occur, sir?

12· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I would like -- based on the

13· ·questioning just now, I would like to submit for the

14· ·record a copy of the Stronghold Civic Association's

15· ·original protest letter and a copy of the Ward 5 council

16· ·member's letter which we received from him for the

17· ·record.

18· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Can you show it to

19· ·him please.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· It's Exhibit Number 2, the

21· ·Stronghold Civic Association.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· I think I have saw this.
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·1· ·Yeah.

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· So have you -- do you

·3· ·have any objection to the document, sir?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· I see the content of the --

·5· ·the letter.

·6· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· It's like I saw the things

·8· ·that they are trying to -- they are -- or they are

·9· ·(inaudible 24:27), but I already explained.· I didn't

10· ·try to clarify the -- the things that are listed on that

11· ·document.· So --

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Okay.· So

13· ·-- so it's --it's moved as a part of the record.· All

14· ·right.· Thanks.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· I'm not -- I'm not agreeing,

16· ·but I already responded to it.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, all right.

18· ·Well, all right.· Well, if you're not agreeing for me to

19· ·include the document, then I'll overrule you and then I

20· ·will allow the document to be admitted as a part of the

21· ·evidence.· Okay.· All right.· Go ahead.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Another question?
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Only if you have

·2· ·some, sir.· I don't -- I'm not forcing you to ask

·3· ·questions if you don't have any.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· You spoke about the efforts of

·5· ·the Stronghold Civic Association to find out what the

·6· ·neighborhood's position on the application was.· I take

·7· ·it you were aware of the petition that was circulated to

·8· ·residents of Stronghold that now has 82 signatures on

·9· ·it.· Are you aware of that petition?

10· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I am.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Did you -- did you participate

12· ·in gathering signatures for -- for this petition?

13· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I did.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Also mentioned in the opening

15· ·statement some of the people who signed the petition

16· ·also submitted more detailed written responses to the

17· ·proposed -- to the application for a liquor store.· Are

18· ·-- are you aware of those written responses from some of

19· ·the Stronghold neighbors?

20· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes, I am.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I would like to submit those

22· ·two documents which are our Exhibit Number 4, signatures
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·1· ·on the petition -- copies of the signatures.· These are

·2· ·the originals -- copies of the signatures on the

·3· ·petition to protest this application and our Exhibit

·4· ·Number 5 which is excerpted letters from the Stronghold

·5· ·-- Stronghold citizens -- residents with regard to the

·6· ·application.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Could I ask a question about --

·8· ·did you say excerpted?· Well, how were they excerpted?

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· The discussion that we had with

10· ·the members of the Stronghold community who we talked

11· ·with were primarily concerned about -- they had no

12· ·problem with the actual petition.· The petition if you

13· ·read in your -- it is Exhibit 4 -- is pretty bald.· It's

14· ·the three major points in our protest letter, the

15· ·standards, things which we are protesting.· But we

16· ·discussed with our -- our community many other things

17· ·concerning the loitering, the urination in the alleyway,

18· ·the -- the trash, the litter, the traffic jams, and

19· ·whatnot.· And many people said that they would like to

20· ·comment, but they said I can't comment in candor with my

21· ·name on it, this is -- this is political.· Now, what we

22· ·said we would do is this:· Well, if you write me a
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·1· ·letter, I will take your street address or name off of

·2· ·it and just submit the text.· And that's what I'm

·3· ·talking about here.· These people are all known to us.

·4· ·I see head shaking there.· This is not --

·5· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I'm listening to you.

·6· ·So go ahead.· I'm listening.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Yeah.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· This is -- we wanted to illicit

·9· ·descriptions because what we've got is our -- we're

10· ·trying to be objective about this.· A lot of the people

11· ·in Stronghold especially the ones that are closest to

12· ·the Bryant Street and the Channing Street area are

13· ·pretty animated about what they -- they deal with every

14· ·day.· And we said we'd like to give you an opportunity

15· ·to say what you see and you are known to me as a

16· ·resident of Stronghold.· I can identify these people by

17· ·name.· But I said if you write that down, we'll submit

18· ·that as comments, the comments of an individual

19· ·Strongholder as opposed to the joint -- the common

20· ·ground here is the three major points in our -- our

21· ·petition.· Does that help?

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Let --
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·1· ·well, let me ask you a question, sir.· Do you have --

·2· ·you said you had six witnesses.· So do you have five

·3· ·witnesses who are going basically state what's in these

·4· ·letters?

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· The people who wrote these, no.

·6· ·This is separate.

·7· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· But I'm saying -- but

·8· ·are they going to say -- are their -- would their

·9· ·testimony be similar to what's in these letters?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Yes.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, I think --

12· ·remember in a protest hearing you have to -- you --

13· ·you're -- you're supposed to let us know why this

14· ·establishment is not appropriate for the area.· So you

15· ·need to spend your time honing in on that issue, and

16· ·time is of the essence.· And so if you have five more

17· ·witnesses to -- to testify, then I think it's better to

18· ·move along, to have these people come and testify why is

19· ·it that they believe that this establishment is not

20· ·appropriate for the area and so we don't get to the end

21· ·and it's you know what, I have -- you have exhausted

22· ·your time and you still have five witnesses sitting
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·1· ·there to -- to testify.· So I'm just letting you know

·2· ·that what is it that you need to prove and just be

·3· ·mindful of the time constraint that you do have.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· The contrast here is the couple

·5· ·of witnesses -- and of course it's not -- not a lot.

·6· ·These are people who are willing to take an oath and

·7· ·describe what they see firsthand.· There are several

·8· ·people in Stronghold who said I -- I can't do that.

·9· ·They feel that they cannot do that, and we're trying to

10· ·provide their voice as well.· That's all we're trying to

11· ·do.· There is no overlapping person.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, I -- I think

13· ·normally and because we're not in a court of law is that

14· ·you need an opportunity to confront folks.· So you could

15· ·write these -- you could write these statements and give

16· ·it to us and they don't an opportunity to cross examine.

17· ·So if you notice one of the reasons why I always ask

18· ·them -- when they had their witness statements I asked

19· ·you if you had a -- you have -- if you had a problem

20· ·with it.· Because all we have here are statements and we

21· ·don't know who wrote them, why were they written.· And

22· ·so I'm just saying to you if you have people in the
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·1· ·audience that can testify to basically what these folks

·2· ·are saying, at least The Board will get a better idea

·3· ·because these are live people to ask questions.· Both

·4· ·sides can ask questions, and we can use this to -- later

·5· ·on to supplement it, to say you know what, well, the

·6· ·five people who testified today, you know, it appeared

·7· ·that they represent the neighborhood.· So therefore

·8· ·although these folks either didn't have the time or for

·9· ·whatever reason they didn't show up.· But for the people

10· ·who showed up I mean they're very passionate about it

11· ·and so The Board should really listen to them.· Because

12· ·we will have an opportunity to cross examine them.· They

13· ·will have an opportunity to cross examine them.· We

14· ·cannot cross examine -- no one can cross examine a piece

15· ·of paper.· And so in a court of law you really would not

16· ·be -- be allowed to -- to have a document.· So what I'm

17· ·saying is that since you have real bodies who can

18· ·testify about these type of issues, call them, let them

19· ·testify, let us have real conversations.· And then later

20· ·on if you want to introduce these documents to say see I

21· ·have 20 letters from the community that supports what

22· ·these folks say, then you know then I think that gives

http://www.olenderreporting.com


·1· ·it more weight.· So I'm just saying just for us to --

·2· ·for you to move to the issue, the appropriateness --

·3· ·because if you don't present the information, then The

·4· ·Board might make a -- make a decision and we don't have

·5· ·all the information because we haven't heard everything

·6· ·that -- all the problems that you -- you've had with

·7· ·this area, with this --

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· This is a procedural issue.

·9· ·All of our witnesses here today are members of the

10· ·Stronghold Civic Association ABRA Committee.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Right.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· So they have all seen these.

13· ·And in most cases they could identify the street address

14· ·and by name.· How about I would propose as a procedural

15· ·issue that the couple of witnesses we have come up who

16· ·are just going to be testifying as members of the

17· ·community ask do you agree with these, are these

18· ·concerns that you could address?

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· They don't

20· ·necessarily need to do that.· You don't need to ask them

21· ·to agree.· Just have them state what their problem is.

22· ·I'm sorry.· Just have them -- just have them tell us
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·1· ·what the problem is.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Okay.

·3· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And -- and then you

·4· ·can -- later on if -- if this is -- if this is a part of

·5· ·the record, then we can say -- if -- if -- if it's

·6· ·introduced, then The Board can say, you know, we had

·7· ·five people testify and these five people -- it appears

·8· ·that the five people who showed up, that they represent

·9· ·the neighborhood because we have testimony from the rest

10· ·of the neighborhood that has the same sentiment.· So

11· ·that's why I'm saying just move forward.· Since you have

12· ·the -- you have the live body here, let them tell us

13· ·what their problems are.· Let -- let these people cross

14· ·examine them.· Let The Board ask them questions because

15· ·I think it will be more meaningful to The Board that we

16· ·have a live body to ask questions.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· All right.

18· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· What do

19· ·you want to do?

20· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· That is the end of my

21· ·questioning of this witness.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· All
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·1· ·right.· Now, did I -- okay.· So did I -- all right.· So

·2· ·now you guys have an opportunity -- and it's just one

·3· ·person.· Who wants to do it?· You have an opportunity to

·4· ·her any question based on what she testified to.· Do you

·5· ·want to do that?· You don't have to.· Just think about

·6· ·it.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBREKIDAN:· No thanks.

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Do we

·9· ·have any questions by any board members?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I have a quick question.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes, Mr. Alberti.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I may have more in a little

13· ·bit after I just ask the question.· But I -- just what

14· ·are the -- what generally are the boundaries of the

15· ·Stronghold Civic Association?· I'm clueless.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Okay.· Our boundaries are on

17· ·all of -- from North Capitol Street from Bryant all the

18· ·way down to Michigan and the side streets.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Going east.· So you're on the

20· ·east side of --

21· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Just the east side of North
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·1· ·Capitol Street?

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· North Capitol, right.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· All right.· From Bryant to --

·4· ·up to --

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· To Michigan Avenue.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· To Michigan Avenue.· Okay.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· And the side streets.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· And did you at all discuss

·9· ·this with the neighborhood across the street -- across

10· ·East Capitol Street?

11· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Well, we have one neighbor who

12· ·does live across the street --

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· -- this evening to testify.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· So we'll hear from them

16· ·later.· But you didn't really have a formal discussion

17· ·with them that you -- you had?

18· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· No.· We just dealt with our

19· ·neighborhood.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.

21· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· But they knew -- people on the

22· ·other side knew that we were pursuing this.· And so some
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·1· ·of those neighbors were interested because they are

·2· ·affected by it as well.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· Very good.· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Any other questions

·5· ·by any of the -- yes, Ms. Miller.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· How many people are in the

·7· ·civic association?

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Now, what we did we have --

·9· ·now, we have about 80 people who are currently paid

10· ·members.· But what we do -- with situations that affect

11· ·Stronghold as a whole we don't deal with just the

12· ·membership of the civic association.· We give it to

13· ·everyone.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· So everyone, how many --

15· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Every single person.· Yes.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· How many is that?

17· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· What do we have, like 270

18· ·houses?

19· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· 270 houses.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· You can't -- no.· No.

21· ·No.

22· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Oh, I'm sorry.
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· If you don't know --

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I think it's 270.

·3· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· If you don't know,

·4· ·you don't know.· You can't --

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Okay.· I don't -- I don't

·6· ·know.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· So when you say everyone --

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I'm not going to say everyone.

·9· ·Every house.· We put a flyer in every house.

10· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Every house.· Where --

11· ·where were the boundaries?

12· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· In those boundaries.· In the

13· ·Stronghold boundaries, North Capitol and the side

14· ·streets up to Michigan.

15· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· So that you put a flyer

16· ·in 270 people's houses?

17· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

18· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· And there could be more

19· ·than one person in a house.· So it could be 500 people

20· ·or something.

21· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· It could be.

22· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Could be.· So -- and how many
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·1· ·did you get on your petition?

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· With the petition did we say

·3· ·the difference between those two?

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· With the -- with the petition

·6· ·we did not -- we didn't have -- we didn't have a long

·7· ·period.· And so we kind of grabbed people as -- as we

·8· ·could and talk to them.· We didn't have a door-to-door

·9· ·petition.

10· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Where did you do it?

11· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· On all the streets.· We had

12· ·the block captains to try to see people in their

13· ·neighborhood.· And I can vouch for my street which is

14· ·Franklin Street.· And there was not one person that I

15· ·encountered that did not sign or -- or supported the

16· ·store as it is.

17· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· It sounds like -- and I

18· ·didn't double-check it.· But the invitation to the

19· ·meeting was neutral, come tell us what you think --

20· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

21· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· -- or hear about it.· But it --

22· ·but the petition's not neutral?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· No.· The petition was not

·2· ·neutral.· At the time we did the petition that's when we

·3· ·had decided that we would protest because we could not

·4· ·come to a settlement.· I had met with them, and they

·5· ·heard the concerns that the community gave.· So we

·6· ·hadn't heard from them so we decided to do the protest.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· And in -- in the meeting or the

·8· ·petitioning did you hear some people who held a contrary

·9· ·point of view?

10· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· No.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· No.

12· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Not one person.· And they were

13· ·there, they can attest to that, not one person.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Now, they have a couple

15· ·of letters or something from --

16· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Those people weren't there

17· ·and --

18· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Those people weren't at your

19· ·meeting?

20· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· No.

21· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· You -- and do you know who they

22· ·are?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I mean I saw them and I saw

·2· ·the addresses.· And one of them lives where they could

·3· ·walk to a liquor store.· And the liquor store in their

·4· ·area that's already there is closer than the corner

·5· ·market, the address on one of them.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· I think I heard you -- wait.

·7· ·So when you're testifying now are you testifying for the

·8· ·civic association or for yourself?

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· What I -- what I read was what

10· ·I did as president of the civic association.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· But --

12· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I tried to reach out to

13· ·everyone.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· What you did in your

15· ·capacity as president?

16· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

17· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· But are you authorized for

18· ·instance to say what exactly your concerns are about

19· ·this -- their getting an A license?

20· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.· I can tell you what

21· ·the -- what the -- what the concerns are from the people

22· ·I've talked to is about the littering.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· This is from the people you

·2· ·talked to then.· This isn't from the official civic

·3· ·association?

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· The civic association never

·5· ·took a stance.· We gathered information from -- from

·6· ·individuals.· We never took a stance.· We just listened.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· But you took a stand to file a

·8· ·protest?

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Right.· Because they never got

10· ·back with me.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· So -- so with respect to the

12· ·protest then I'm just -- I just want to narrow -- I just

13· ·want to zero in on what the concerns are.· I think you

14· ·said something about robberies.

15· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.· It's crime.· They -- I

16· ·was award of one robbery until I talked to a neighbor

17· ·that lives on that block, and she said there had been

18· ·three.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· So are you -- are you

20· ·concerned that --

21· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yeah.· I'm concerned about the

22· ·crime.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· -- that -- that there will be

·2· ·an increase because of the change?

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Or are you concerned that this

·5· ·establishment has problems now?· I'm just not clear.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I think that there may be an

·7· ·increase because of the change as well.

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Now why do you think

·9· ·that, that the change will cause an increase in armed

10· ·robberies or --

11· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Because I think that when

12· ·alcohol is involved it could -- it could be more.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· And are you -- are there

14· ·other concerns you have?

15· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Well, it's lot of -- it's a --

16· ·it's a lot of trash.

17· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Trash.· Yeah.

18· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· It's a lot -- it's a lot of

19· ·loitering.

20· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· There is now?· Is that what

21· ·you --

22· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· There is now.· And we do have
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·1· ·testimony and evidence to support that.· There's records

·2· ·-- huh?

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· I'm sorry.· Please repeat.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I said we do have testimony

·5· ·and evidence to support is that, that there is

·6· ·loitering, that there is drinking outside the store on

·7· ·the premises.· And maybe the inspector just came on --

·8· ·on good days.· But it's a lot of trash.

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· So when have you observed it?

10· ·You say -- because that's the thing that -- that the

11· ·investigator said he didn't see loitering and he didn't

12· ·see trash.· When do you -- when is -- when does that

13· ·happen?

14· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· We have a witness that can

15· ·testify to that.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· That's not you?

17· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· That's not me.· No.

18· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Okay.· Okay.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Is that one of the exhibits?

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· No.· You can't ask

21· ·any questions.

22· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Oh, I can't ask him.· You told

http://www.olenderreporting.com


·1· ·me that.

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I'm sorry.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· I want to just wrap this up.

·5· ·And is there -- is there anything else that you can

·6· ·testify to with respect to any adverse conditions that

·7· ·exist now or that you're afraid are going to exist by

·8· ·the change --

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I think the situation --

10· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· -- because of the change?

11· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· -- would get worse.

12· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· What?· What will get --

13· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I think the situation would be

14· ·worse.· One thing that the investigator did not do, the

15· ·-- even though there will be testimony about people

16· ·drinking outside, the bulk of the drinking is in the

17· ·alley.· And it's -- it's no way during those times that

18· ·somebody can come by and there's not activity in the

19· ·alley.· It's the drinking, the gambling, the -- the

20· ·whole nine yards, and I think that with alcohol it would

21· ·make the situation worse.· And this is what happens with

22· ·the beer and the wine.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· So have you personally observed

·2· ·drinking in the alley?

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Have I ever seen drinking in

·4· ·the alley?

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Yeah.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes, I have.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· When do you see it?

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· When I come through the alley

·9· ·I've seen it.

10· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· I mean the nighttime, the

11· ·daytime, the morning, the -- all the time?

12· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I mean you can see it in the

13· ·daytime or nighttime.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· I just wanted to know your

15· ·testimony when you have seen it.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· When I have seen it.· I have

17· ·seen it in the daytime and nighttime.· I've seen people

18· ·drinking beer.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Oh, my last question is

20· ·were you there before they got their B license, before

21· ·they had wine and beer?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· They've always had it.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Did you live -- oh, they've

·2· ·always had it?

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· The previous owners had it.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yeah.· It was transferred

·5· ·over.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· It's always been there.· So

·7· ·you -- okay.· Okay.· That's it then.· Thank you.

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Thank you.

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes, Mr. Short.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Good afternoon, Ms. Jackson.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Good afternoon.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· How many years have you lived in

13· ·the -- in that Stronghold neighborhood?

14· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· About 25.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· 25 years.· And you say your

16· ·council member lives in Stronghold?

17· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Okay.· I would say this,

19· ·something that really just jumped out at me when I start

20· ·looking at the -- this case is that it's zoned R3,

21· ·residential.· And I do know having lived in every

22· ·quadrant of the city and worked in every quadrant of the
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·1· ·city that that doesn't happen in every neighborhood, in

·2· ·every quadrant of the city.· It's very strange to me

·3· ·that this is a R3 that has a beer and wine store in a

·4· ·residential community.

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Right.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· And some -- some of the

·7· ·questions you're getting is because some -- a lot of us

·8· ·don't really know the knowledge or the history of the

·9· ·city or the neighborhoods.

10· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Okay.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· We know basically a R3 in Ward 3

12· ·wouldn't have this happen.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Exactly.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Okay.· And so I don't know -- I

15· ·-- I really -- I really don't understand.· I'll just

16· ·simply say to my knowledge -- and I will say that again.

17· ·To my knowledge I don't know any R3s in Ward 3 that have

18· ·a A liquor store in a R3 zone.· Maybe a mixed zone, but

19· ·not a R3 zone.· Anybody here wants to talk to me about

20· ·that later, they can.· But right now this is -- this is

21· ·my questioning.· And so I'm just -- just quite concerned

22· ·having known that neighborhood.· I remember when North
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·1· ·Capitol Street didn't come all the way through and there

·2· ·was a black wrought iron fence that went all the way

·3· ·around US Soldiers' Home.· So I -- I know Washington

·4· ·D.C. quite well.· I know that neighborhood quite well --

·5· ·quite -- quite well.· And it's a very beautiful

·6· ·neighborhood, and it's really discouraging to me to hear

·7· ·that people are urinating in the alley after buying

·8· ·alcohol from a -- any store but in a R3.· And that has

·9· ·run a lot of our neighborhoods completely down not as

10· ·one board member just for say my personal opinion and my

11· ·opinion as a ABRA Board -- ABC board member that we

12· ·shouldn't allow this.· But I only have one vote.· And

13· ·I'll just say to you I would talk to my council members,

14· ·I would talk to anybody I could.· I don't think

15· ·that again some of these businesses would apply in Ward

16· ·3 or possibly Ward 2.· Maybe 7 and 8.· And I don't know

17· ·why the disparaging -- or maybe I do know, but I -- I

18· ·don't want to discuss that right now.· But I think that

19· ·-- that this board needs to really look at how some of

20· ·our neighborhoods are being completely run down with

21· ·stores selling wine and beer to people underage and

22· ·drinking in the allies and urinating in the allies.  I
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·1· ·don't want it in my neighborhood, and I know not a board

·2· ·member up here wants it in their neighborhood.· One

·3· ·board member testified already that he had had it in his

·4· ·neighborhood, but I think that store has closed down.

·5· ·And my church is right down the street from this store,

·6· ·and it was -- it was a mess.· But the community banded

·7· ·together, and that store is no longer there.· I do know

·8· ·we've also had come before us a good neighborhood to say

·9· ·they want moratoriums so to stop stores like this from

10· ·coming into residential areas.· But you're doing the

11· ·right thing by going -- by door to door.· And -- and --

12· ·and let me ask you this:· You being the president of the

13· ·civic association -- this goes back to Ms. Miller's

14· ·question -- percentage-wise how many people do you think

15· ·in the Stronghold, in your community would vote yes for

16· ·this percentage-wise to your knowledge?

17· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Less than five percent.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· So 95 percent you think as being

19· ·the president and representative of the -- 95 percent of

20· ·the people don't want this?

21· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Do not want it.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Okay.· That's all I have.· Thank
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·1· ·you, Mr. Chair.

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· And can I say one more thing

·3· ·about the -- as far as like the numbers and things like

·4· ·that?

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Brief -- you can briefly tell

·6· ·me.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I -- with the civic

·8· ·association we -- even though we have numbers of people

·9· ·who pay, that doesn't mean that they come.· Sometimes

10· ·that's the way it goes with the association.· But I can

11· ·say that the meeting that we had with this concern the

12· ·attendance was way more than what we normally have.· So

13· ·people were concerned about it.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· There was interest?

15· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· It's a -- it's a whole lot of

16· ·interest in the neighborhood.· And we were also told as

17· ·far as like with the store being there that they were

18· ·grandfathered in because now that would never even be

19· ·tolerated to have that store in a residential

20· ·neighborhood.· So they were grandfathered in with the B

21· ·license.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· I do understand.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Because we didn't understand

·2· ·why, you know, they sold beer and wine.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Again, thank you for your

·4· ·testimony.· Its been quite compelling, Ms. Jackson.· And

·5· ·I as a board member did hear you and your community.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Thank you so much.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Thank you.

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do we have any other

·9· ·questions by any other board members?· Yes, Mr. Alberti.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I think you just pointed at

11· ·me.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Okay.· Yes, Mr.

13· ·Alberti.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· All right.· So -- so,

15· ·Ms. Jackson, I'm not going to prolong this, but I -- I'm

16· ·trying to zero in, and I look at specifics.· So I'm

17· ·trying to zero in on specifically, you know, your

18· ·concerns.· I mean I hear the general angst, and I get

19· ·it.· But -- so but one thing that you did say was -- and

20· ·I'll paraphrase what you told me -- what you were

21· ·telling us was that you're concerned that having spirits

22· ·will only exasperate the problem of public drinking?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.· It's -- it's going on

·2· ·now.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Because you -- because you've

·4· ·said you've seen -- you've heard complaints and you've

·5· ·seen public drinking in the allies which is the -- which

·6· ·is not -- is not surprising.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Public drinking, littering,

·8· ·and --

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· And littering?

10· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· -- parking.· Oh, it's a lot --

11· ·yes, it's a lot of littering.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Well, how is spirits -- how

13· ·does -- how does the sale of spirits affect parking?

14· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· It will bring more traffic

15· ·into the -- into the neighborhood to purchase.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· So but -- but anything he did

17· ·to -- anything he did to increase his business would

18· ·bring more traffic, right?

19· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Not necessarily.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Why not?

21· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Because it would be more

22· ·walking.· People wouldn't drive to come to that store.
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·1· ·That's like a community store.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· For -- for non-alcoholic

·3· ·beverages?

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· No.· They got groceries or

·5· ·whatever they want.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· Well, all right.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· People are going to -- people

·8· ·will stop to buy liquor if they see the sign for liquor.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Thank you.· Okay.· So -- so

10· ·let's go -- let's go back to the public drinking.· All

11· ·right?

12· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yeah.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Are you concerned that

14· ·certain -- that certain products in particular -- well,

15· ·I'm guessing -- so are you concerned that -- how do I

16· ·say this?· I get that you're concerned that it's going

17· ·to increase public drinking.· Are you concerned that the

18· ·sale of certain products would -- would -- would do

19· ·that?· I mean you lived there 25 years.· You know

20· ·that -- that -- that the people who are drinking on the

21· ·street aren't drinking everything.· I mean, you know,

22· ·they have their choices of products in terms of -- you
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·1· ·know, you're not seeing the guy out there with a -- with

·2· ·a two liter bottle of bourbon chugging it go down.

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Oh, not.· At all and those are

·4· ·the concerns that we had when we met and invited the

·5· ·owners to come.· And the things that we talked about was

·6· ·about selling a different atmosphere, a different type

·7· ·of store.· I don't know if you've seen the pictures of

·8· ·the store.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I've seen it.

10· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· But they attract people.

11· ·Okay.· People who drink that bourbon are not going to go

12· ·in that store as it is now to buy their bourbon.· So you

13· ·attract certain -- you -- -- you attract to make it

14· ·worse.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· All right.· Thank you.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Okay.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· You've been helpful.· Thank

18· ·you.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Mr. Chairman, I just want to

20· ·follow up on that one remark.

21· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes, Ms. Miller.

22· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Did you say -- and I want to
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·1· ·make sure I heard you right.· Did you say that the way

·2· ·the store is now won't attract a lot of people?

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Right.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· But it will attract a lot of

·5· ·people when it gets a liquor license?

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· No.· Some of the concerns that

·7· ·were brought up when the owners attended the meeting not

·8· ·one person said that they supported the way that it was.

·9· ·The ones that were in the middle of it said, you know,

10· ·maybe if it was done like the way that they had

11· ·Bloomingdale's liquor, maybe if they do something better

12· ·for -- that they will be more open with it.· We came to

13· ·them, and I even talked to someone about grants, the --

14· ·the Great Street grants and I told them that, that may

15· ·-- and we had people who said they would help.· Myself

16· ·and Ms. Young said, you know, just show people that

17· ·you're trying to spruce it up, show people that you --

18· ·that you listen to them, that you're going to make it a

19· ·better place where it won't be just where you have the

20· ·same thing.· Like he said the -- with the small

21· ·containers, with the single beers you attract certain

22· ·people.· And that would happen with the liquor store.
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·1· ·And then you will attract people who will ride down the

·2· ·street and see a sign liquor store and stop to get the

·3· ·liquor.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Uh-huh.

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· So it's not -- it's that

·6· ·nothing is being done to attract the community to come

·7· ·in there to buy.· So it's going to be people from the

·8· ·outside that don't care about the community and don't

·9· ·care about the neighborhood who will litter after.· And

10· ·we have to go out right now and pick up beer bottles and

11· ·things like that that are just discarded up and down the

12· ·street.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.

15· ·Ms. Jackson, let me ask you one of -- you said that the

16· ·Stronghold Civic Association was interested --

17· ·thinking -- thought that they would sign a settlement

18· ·agreement, that you were hoping that there would be a

19· ·settlement agreement; is that correct?

20· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· That's what -- that's what --

21· ·that's what we -- that's what we started with.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· So what is it that --
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·1· ·what is it that you're looking for in a settlement

·2· ·agreement?

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· When we went to -- when we

·4· ·starting talking about a settlement we had a committee.

·5· ·And when the committee started talking to the neighbors

·6· ·about the settlement the same issues that they talked

·7· ·about in the meeting with the owners present are the

·8· ·things that they wanted to have.· So when I went to them

·9· ·and told them that there was no support whatsoever from

10· ·the community with them keeping the place like it is.

11· ·They said they could not afford to do anything, that

12· ·they really -- and it's the owner.· So we didn't see

13· ·where they were even trying to work with us.

14· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· But I'm asking you

15· ·what is it that -- what -- what is it that you're --

16· ·what -- if you're going to do a settlement agreement,

17· ·that there was no settlement agreement -- because you're

18· ·saying there was a settlement agreement.· They're saying

19· ·none was provided.· So I'm asking you what is it that

20· ·you were asking for in a settlement agreement?

21· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· What -- what we talked to them

22· ·about was that there was no support to even talk about a
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·1· ·settlement agreement.

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· So that's why we -- that's why

·4· ·we never had a settlement agreement.

·5· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Okay.· All right.· Go

·6· ·ahead, Mr. Alberti.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Ms. -- Ms. Jackson, I'm going

·8· ·to ask the Chairman's question in a different way.

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Okay.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· And hopefully we'll get I

11· ·think what you're looking for, Mr. Chairman.· If -- this

12· ·is an if.· If we were to grant the license, are there

13· ·any conditions that you would like us to put on the

14· ·license?· And just -- this is just to let everybody know

15· ·we can't as a board the settlement agreement without --

16· ·there's no -- we don't -- we don't -- we don't create

17· ·settlement agreements.· That's an agreement between a

18· ·neighborhood, an ANC, and a licensee.· So we don't

19· ·create settlement agreements.· But when we grant a

20· ·license we have the authority to put conditions on

21· ·licenses if we so choose.· So that's where I'm going.

22· ·If -- if we were to give them a license, what conditions
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·1· ·would you like to us put on that license?

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· As --

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· And you can have someone else

·4· ·tell us later if --

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Okay.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· -- if you want to think about

·7· ·it.

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· As I -- as I stated my

·9· ·position from the very beginning we have a map.· I live

10· ·on Franklin Street.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Please speak up.

12· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· I -- as I have said to

13· ·everyone from the very beginning I think the people who

14· ·live close to that store should have the biggest voice

15· ·about what should happen.· And I'm not comfortable

16· ·saying what I think should happen, and I live on

17· ·Franklin Street.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· Okay.· Very good.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· That has been my position.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· And that's fair.· That's fair.

21· ·Thank you.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Can I say something else, why

·2· ·so much resistance, and it has nothing to do with the

·3· ·alcohol.· Unfortunately our community has had the

·4· ·experience of someone coming and having promises which

·5· ·we accepted blindly that they was -- what we thought was

·6· ·going to be a community garden now we have tiny houses

·7· ·in the alley.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· You know, so we're -- so -- so

10· ·our community is not open to promises because we've had

11· ·that experience.· So that's fine.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Do you

14· ·have any -- any questions based on the questions that

15· ·were asked by The Board?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Yeah, I do please.· I was

17· ·listening very careful to Ms. Miller's questions and her

18· ·responses to them.· And it seemed to me that the line

19· ·was blurred there because I called you up as a witness

20· ·in your capacity as the president of the Stronghold

21· ·Civic Association and I remember very well as another

22· ·officer of the Stronghold Civic Association we were
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·1· ·neutral and we were going to go out and find out what

·2· ·the community said.· So the first person singular

·3· ·pronoun is probably -- I think from my experience is a

·4· ·first person plural, we.· And in the opening statement

·5· ·that we submitted to you I find all these things

·6· ·addressed.· Would you agree that what you were speaking

·7· ·of is -- while it does include your personal experience

·8· ·is the sense of the community as -- as we put in the

·9· ·opening statement?

10· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· We had -- also the issue that

12· ·has come up, a couple of the board members were saying

13· ·about the -- the settlement agreement.· Initially a

14· ·protest pending a settlement agreement was the position

15· ·of the Stronghold Civic Association; is that correct?

16· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· So many -- so many of the

18· ·things that the community said that they were interested

19· ·in because of the Stronghold Civic Association ABRA

20· ·committee's finding, working very closely with Ms. Sarah

21· ·Fashbaugh who instructed us in what kinds of things

22· ·could go into a settlement agreement and what kinds of
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·1· ·things could not go into a settlement agreement and what

·2· ·kind of things if they were put into a settlement

·3· ·agreement were of very questionable enforceability.

·4· ·Would you agree that many of the comments about the

·5· ·store -- for example the products that were sold in the

·6· ·store, people talking about baby foods and larger

·7· ·sections for certain kinds of goods -- would you agree

·8· ·that those were some of the concerns that were heard

·9· ·from the community and part of the problem with a

10· ·settlement agreement is this is going pretty far into

11· ·the business model in general of the store but the

12· ·settlement agreement is addressing strictly ABRA

13· ·concerns?· Is that an accurate description of the kinds

14· ·of things that were heard from the community?

15· · · · · · · ·MS. JACKSON:· Yes.

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I think that's all that I had.

18· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have

19· ·another -- all right.· Thank you for your testimony,

20· ·ma'am.· Do you have another witness?

21· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Yes.· I'd like to call

22· ·Mr. Jason Orfanon up as a witness please.
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Can you raise your

·2· ·right hand please.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Mr. Chairman --

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN: -- the protestants have

·6· ·used 28 of their 90 minutes.· The applicants -- the

·7· ·licensee has used 12.

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, they -- they

·9· ·have presented their case, the applicants.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Informative, keeping

11· ·them -- I don't want anybody blind-sided.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Do you

13· ·swear or affirm to tell the truth and nothing but the

14· ·truth.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yes, I do.

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Okay.· Have a seat

17· ·please, sir.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Mr. Orfanon, could I -- are you

19· ·a member of the --

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Can you -- can you

21· ·first have him identify himself.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Oh, would you please identify
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·1· ·yourself.

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And also have him

·3· ·tell us where he lives also.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Please identify yourself and

·5· ·tell us where you live.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· My name is Jason Orfanan.· I'm

·7· ·a Stronghold resident.· I live on Bryant Street NE.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Jason, what is your last

·9· ·name?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Orfanon, O-R-F-A-N-O-N.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Go ahead, sir.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· So I live approximately one

13· ·block from the store in question.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Did you work with the

15· ·Stronghold ABRA Committee?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yes, I did.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Could you tell us from your --

18· ·where you live and your work with the committee and with

19· ·the community you are I believe the only person we have

20· ·from Bryant Street which is the southern most street in

21· ·Stronghold and it's a block south of the store, could

22· ·you tell us your impression?· So I remember your

http://www.olenderreporting.com


·1· ·presence at each of the -- the Stronghold meetings.

·2· ·Could I hear your impressions of the process, trying to

·3· ·solicit community views, and -- and your own impressions

·4· ·of the current conditions and what the impact of the

·5· ·liquor license might be, whatever aspect of that you're

·6· ·most comfortable articulating for us.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Sure.· So when I first heard

·8· ·about the store asking for the substantial change to

·9· ·their liquor license I was opposed to it.· I didn't want

10· ·to live a block away from a liquor store.· I've lived in

11· ·commercial districts in Mount Pleasant, on U Street,

12· ·Cleveland Park, Woodley Park.· And in all of those

13· ·places I lived very close to liquor stores, and I saw

14· ·the congregation, the loitering, the drunk people with

15· ·bottles in hand passed out on my front porch step, the

16· ·noise on the weekends, the gathering in alleys, and, you

17· ·know, I was sensitive to that.· So I partook in the --

18· ·in the process that Stronghold put forward.· I am also

19· ·friendly with the gentlemen who own the store.· I really

20· ·respect them and I respect their store.· I'm a regular

21· ·customer, and I've been honest with them throughout this

22· ·process; that, you know, I like them, I'm just not in
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·1· ·favor of the liquor change.· And so the process has been

·2· ·really transparent and really encouraging, and it's made

·3· ·me been -- made me be really proud to be part of the

·4· ·Stronghold Civic Association because everyone's been

·5· ·included.· They didn't take a stand.· I was one of the

·6· ·more vocal people opposed to the liquor license upgrade.

·7· ·And the -- the board and the community always took a

·8· ·very neutral tone looking at evidence, talking to

·9· ·people.· We spoke to police officers.· We spoke to ABRA

10· ·representatives.· So yeah, the -- the process has been

11· ·very clear and straightforward.· The -- the concern for

12· ·me is as I -- I walk to the store I walk through the

13· ·alley between Bryant and Channing Street.· It's a

14· ·T-shaped alley that goes straight through from Bryant to

15· ·Channing, and then it dead-ends to the right down

16· ·between Channing and Bryant.· And that is a regular

17· ·place where people gather in the evenings and weekends,

18· ·and they -- they drink, they smoke, they gamble.

19· ·There's a steady flow of people from that alley to the

20· ·store buying single beers.· Those beers often end up in

21· ·the street, in people's yards.· There -- there's

22· ·corresponding trash from chip bags and things like that
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·1· ·that gather in the alley as well.

·2· · · · · · · ·One thing I do regularly notice when I go to

·3· ·the store is that there are often people loitering in

·4· ·front.· And I'll tell Meb and Efrem if there are people

·5· ·in front.· They unfortunately don't have a way to

·6· ·monitor the front of the store.· They don't come out

·7· ·very often.· There's not a camera where they can

·8· ·monitor, and people hang out.· I mean I submitted a

·9· ·photo as evidence.· I believe it's Number 6 in the SCA

10· ·evidence exhibits, and it's a photo I took of four

11· ·people gathered in front of the store.· Two of them have

12· ·visible beers in hand.· I submitted some other photos

13· ·that weren't included as evidence, but those are also of

14· ·people drinking.· But it's a -- it is an issue in

15· ·Stronghold.· People gather there.· They gather across

16· ·the street on the northwest side of -- there are

17· ·actually -- people have a couch on the corner that is

18· ·part of the property that's going to be turned into the

19· ·community center and pool which really is directly

20· ·across the street.· I moved to Stronghold -- and sorry

21· ·if I'm rushing.· I have to get back to work.· I took the

22· ·afternoon off for this meeting, but I do have to get
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·1· ·back.

·2· · · · · · · ·But one thing, I moved to Stronghold in

·3· ·February of last year from the U Street area.· What drew

·4· ·me to Stronghold was that it is a residential

·5· ·neighborhood.· My wife was seven months pregnant I think

·6· ·when we moved in -- or no, five months pregnant.· We now

·7· ·have a one year-old, and we wanted a quiet place, a

·8· ·place where you know your neighbors, it's friendly, you

·9· ·can walk around, you aren't worried too much about

10· ·crime.· You know, for the most part it's a safe place

11· ·where our neighbors communicate.· We have a -- a very

12· ·open -- what's the word -- everyone's involved in the

13· ·conversation, you know.· And the people -- people in

14· ·Stronghold want to listen to everyone, they don't --

15· ·they don't jump to conclusions.· I love that.· They

16· ·wanted to include the -- the store.· They came to the

17· ·store with ideas about ways to improve the store.  I

18· ·have talked to these guys about suggestions I have, and

19· ·I'm still willing to work with them.· But regarding

20· ·this, you know, it's a residential neighborhood.  I

21· ·forget the designation that you all said, but I knew

22· ·that it wasn't a place where a bar was going to go in on
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·1· ·the corner or a liquor store, that's why I moved in

·2· ·there.· The fact that this store is grandfathered in

·3· ·selling beer and wine, that's cool.· You know, it's

·4· ·cool.· But why upgrade it if it's a residential

·5· ·neighborhood?· That's what I want to know.· You don't

·6· ·upgrade something in a place where -- you know, it's

·7· ·grandfathered in and that's one thing, but why go

·8· ·further down the line?· That's why ABRA is so great.

·9· ·ABRA takes into consideration the community's views.

10· ·Seeing Stronghold come together and present these views

11· ·to a very impartial, you know, thoughtful group like

12· ·yourselves, it's -- that's why we're here.· So I'm

13· ·really encouraged by this process and the fact that you

14· ·all have us here for this hearing.· Let's see if I

15· ·covered what I wanted to say.· The --

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Normally the way the

17· ·process works is that he asks you questions and you --

18· ·you can't go in the witness box with a list of stuff to

19· ·say.· But --

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Sure.· Sure.· Sure.· And I --

21· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· -- because -- but

22· ·because this is informal and --
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.· I get nervous up here.

·2· ·It's -- it's -- you know, so thank you.· Kirby, did you

·3· ·have a question for me?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I can't think of any.· He has

·5· ·gone through the questions.· We spoke earlier about the

·6· ·statements that we had here, and he's covered the very

·7· ·things first person under oath.· You did give him an

·8· ·oath, didn't you?

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.· I raised my hand.· One

10· ·thing I did want to -- I forgot to say.· Board Member

11· ·Alberti mentioned the camera, if the store was willing

12· ·to put a camera in front would that help things.· One

13· ·thing I noticed when the Investigator Peru submitted his

14· ·documents, that there is a existing voluntary agreement

15· ·from 2002, and part of that agreement is that the store

16· ·must maintain a working camera to watch -- that's

17· ·Exhibit 22 in what he submitted, they must maintain a

18· ·working camera with views of the exterior of the store.

19· ·They don't have that.· They admitted that under oath.

20· ·They also are not supposed to have exterior

21· ·advertisements for beer or cigarettes.· There is a

22· ·Newport sign visible in those photos that show the front

http://www.olenderreporting.com


·1· ·of the store.· There are Corona adds on the sign.  I

·2· ·don't trust a voluntary agreement where there isn't

·3· ·anything -- that we're not following it right now.  I

·4· ·mean I think we have to -- I think we're happy with our

·5· ·store now.· I mean we're not happy with the -- we want

·6· ·to work with the store to improve it.· But I think going

·7· ·down the spirits road is not going to improve things.

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Any other

·9· ·questions?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I -- I don't.· No.· Thank you.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any

12· ·questions for him, sir?· I mean do you have any

13· ·questions.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· No.· Thank you.

15· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do I have any

16· ·questions by any board member?· Ms. Miller.

17· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Good afternoon.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yes.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· I'll try not to delay you too

20· ·long, but --

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· It's okay.· I have time for

22· ·this.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Because I think you're a

·2· ·very important witness in that you live right down the

·3· ·street.· But also you've testified to this blatant

·4· ·sounds like loitering --

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Sure.· Yeah.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· -- a couch and this and that.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Did -- did our investigator

·9· ·talk to you or did you have any idea when he was there

10· ·or --

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· No.

12· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· No.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· I didn't have -- I didn't know

14· ·when the investigator was there.· I -- two weekends ago

15· ·decided to spend more time walking past the store, and I

16· ·did.· On the two days I went by there both times I saw

17· ·people gathered in front and I took photos.· I thought

18· ·that would be good evidence to show.· One is in the

19· ·packet that you have.· The other photo I have on my

20· ·computer -- or a group of photos.

21· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· The other -- I don't know how
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·1· ·he missed the couch across the street.· There's usually

·2· ·a box truck that provides shade for the couch.· The

·3· ·alley, I can understand that maybe he didn't venture

·4· ·into the alley.· Stronghold is a neighborhood of alleys.

·5· ·People -- you know, it's barriered on that one side by

·6· ·North Capitol, but the allies are really the network

·7· ·where people connect.· And those allies unfortunately

·8· ·are -- have sometimes become havens for, you know, that

·9· ·kind of loitering.· And the neighborhood is very -- you

10· ·know, we've -- its worked out a system.· You know, it's

11· ·-- but it -- it does get out of control.· About I think

12· ·Memorial Day weekend there was someone assaulted with a

13· ·tire iron where someone was chased around, the police

14· ·had to come.· You know, I think that that was a problem,

15· ·and that's continuing to be a problem.· The cars pile up

16· ·in the alley where people can't get in and out of their

17· ·garages.· And I think you might hear from the other

18· ·people that talk about the trash that ends up in their

19· ·yard.

20· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· So I mean you're -- you're

21· ·talking about what exists now.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· And I gather that you're

·2· ·concerned that it will get worse.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.· I mean when you have

·4· ·someone sipping on a -- a Magnum, that's different than

·5· ·sipping on a bottle of gin, it happens faster, you know.

·6· ·And people will -- I'm sure there will be more peeing,

·7· ·more forget ting about responsibilities to your

·8· ·neighbors, to your community only because I lived in

·9· ·areas like that before where people would be on my front

10· ·stoop, you know, people would defecate in my entryway,

11· ·I'd have to nudge people with my foot to get to my car

12· ·in the morning.· And, you know, I'm not an expert on

13· ·this, but I've seen this and I've lived around it.· And

14· ·I'm not a teetotaler.· You know, I'm not opposed to

15· ·alcohol.· But there are within a mile of -- of this

16· ·store there are five other liquor stores, at least some

17· ·-- I think a few that are within a mile.· It's a -- it's

18· ·walking distance.· I mean why do we need one in a

19· ·residential neighborhood?

20· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Yeah.· No.· I hear you, and I

21· ·don't -- I don't necessarily disagree.· I mean I can't

22· ·say I'm going to -- you know, how I'm going to decide
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·1· ·this.· But I understand that this is already residential

·2· ·and this is unusual.· I -- you know what, I don't know

·3· ·if you -- you can answer this or whether it's a proper

·4· ·question or whatever.· But it sounds like -- you know,

·5· ·it's being represented here that this is really -- the

·6· ·community is quote almost 95 percent behind this which

·7· ·is Ms. Jackson's estimate and the council member has

·8· ·written a letter, McDuffie.· Can you comment at all with

·9· ·respect to the ANC's position?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· It's funny.· I --

11· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· I know you can't present it --

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· -- because you're not -- but

14· ·what do you know about it?· Because they're -- they're

15· ·not here.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Sure.· So I am -- I am a -- I

17· ·love the -- so D.C. is an interesting place, right,

18· ·where you have these neighborhood groups, the Stronghold

19· ·Civic Association that is sort of under the umbrella of

20· ·the -- of the community that is also served by the ANC.

21· ·The ANCs often relied on the neighborhoods to be their

22· ·boots on the ground.· They -- the ANC doesn't have time
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·1· ·to talk to the community.· I've been to the ANC meeting

·2· ·for 5E where Commissioner Barnes is.· They don't talk to

·3· ·the community really.· They talk to each other, and they

·4· ·argue most of the time.· I went to the meeting shortly

·5· ·after Stronghold decided that it was going to protest

·6· ·pending any sort of possible settlement to see what the

·7· ·ANC said because I had never been to an ANC meeting.

·8· ·They didn't spend a minute discussing it.· They just

·9· ·said that they were going to support the Stronghold

10· ·position.· And three other things that came up during

11· ·that same -- during that same meeting they always said

12· ·they would refer to the community.· I don't see why

13· ·Commissioner Barnes is taking a different stance now.  I

14· ·mean the community has been going door to door and

15· ·talking to people.· The ANC does not do that.· They

16· ·don't -- they don't give the opportunity for people to

17· ·really talk.· They don't have -- what are they called --

18· ·committees.· So I'm confused by that relationship, and

19· ·it interests me.· It makes me want to go to more

20· ·meetings and see how I can help.

21· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· And this is my final

22· ·question.· In -- in that, you know, you're expressing a
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·1· ·lot of concerns --

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· -- about adverse impacts from

·4· ·this establishment.· Have you ever brought those

·5· ·concerns to ABRA and any kind of complaint or opposed

·6· ·the -- a renewal of a license?

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.· I've never been

·8· ·involved in any other opposing of renewals.· I'm now

·9· ·just learning about the process and I'm learning the

10· ·value of my voice in the community.· So this has been a

11· ·great learning experience.· I -- I think that if -- you

12· ·know, it's our responsibility as community members to

13· ·voice those concerns.· And now that I better understand

14· ·it I plan to be in the future.

15· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Thank you.

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Silverstein.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Yes.· I want to first

18· ·thank you, Mr. Orfanon, and I think you've gotten into

19· ·some extremely important stuff here, some very important

20· ·things.· Title 25 restricts our deliberations to matters

21· ·of peace, order, and quiet, pedestrian safety,

22· ·residential parking, and property values, litter, and
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·1· ·sanitation, and to consider appropriateness.· How you

·2· ·got here is very little concern of ours.· The process is

·3· ·very little concern of ours because you have a right to

·4· ·be here.· You don't have to justify the fact that you're

·5· ·here.· It's a protest hearing [inaudible 1:13:28], and I

·6· ·think you've gotten to a lot of these issues.· And I

·7· ·think you've gotten to a lot of these issues of peace,

·8· ·order, quiet, how it -- how it affects your life.· Is

·9· ·there anything else that he want to talk about?· I mean,

10· ·you know, I know you're in a hurry and I know you guys

11· ·have already used up better than a third of your time.

12· ·And this part doesn't count against you, when we

13· ·question it doesn't.· Is there anything else in terms of

14· ·peace, order, quiet, residential parking, pedestrian

15· ·safety, those particular protestable issues that you

16· ·want to bring up before you're done?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· I will add that -- and I know

18· ·it's -- it's -- I don't know if I can speak on behalf of

19· ·my wife.· But I know that she is uncomfortable passing

20· ·by the store when there are people drinking in front of

21· ·it.· They're sitting out there drinking beer now.

22· ·That's a -- that's an issue of -- of peace and safety
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·1· ·that affects my family.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· That's order certainly and

·3· ·quiet --

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.· Order and quiet.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· -- even if it's -- yeah.

·6· ·Of course.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· The idea that my alleyway

·8· ·behind my house where my kid plays basketball and will

·9· ·some day ride around on his Big Wheel is going to be

10· ·perhaps like that becomes the new hangout where -- where

11· ·people will be drinking because it's further off the

12· ·beaten path of the police, that concerns me.· You know,

13· ·if -- I've seen -- I've seen the corner of Florida

14· ·Avenue and North Capitol where there is a big problem

15· ·with people sitting in front of the liquor store

16· ·drinking.· I even question the police's ability to

17· ·enforce that.· In a residential neighborhood you even

18· ·have less police patrols, you have less commercial

19· ·activity.· That's a concern for me.· So that -- that's

20· ·related to my peace and order concern.· I know you

21· ·mentioned the real estate value too.· I wouldn't have

22· ·bought my house for the price I bought it for if I had
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·1· ·known it was so close to a liquor store.· That affect --

·2· ·that affected my decision.· And could this perhaps lower

·3· ·the value of my house because of the proximity to the --

·4· ·to a -- what some people might consider a nuisance?

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Another standard is

·6· ·appropriateness.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Isn't real estate value part

·8· ·of the one of the areas that you're -- you're able to

·9· ·look at?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· No.· I mean when -- when

11· ·we make the decision we have to decide whether something

12· ·is appropriate for a neighborhood.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· You -- you have a special

15· ·exception here in the zone for -- for this to selling --

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Beer and wine.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· -- wine and beer.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Would moving this up,

20· ·escalating this to spirits make things worse?· And would

21· ·that be inappropriate do you believe?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· To me it -- to me it would be
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·1· ·in the sense that --

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Why?

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· -- the -- the quantity of

·4· ·people that sit around drinking 20 ounce beers, 16 ounce

·5· ·beers, 12 ounce beers it's a slow drink.· You have a few

·6· ·sips, you're -- it's hot out.· People start passing --

·7· ·passing back and forth a bottle of spirits even if

·8· ·they're not selling pints, that's still an opportunity

·9· ·for people to have closer access to alcohol in a

10· ·residential neighborhood where they're going to be

11· ·sipping on that in addition to whatever single beers

12· ·that they're selling behind the counter.· And that's my

13· ·concern is that it's --

14· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· You're saying one is a

15· ·slow drink and the other is a quicker drunk?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.· Yeah.· I think -- I

17· ·mean it's -- it's -- that's why you guys consider it

18· ·something different, you know, A versus B.· Beer and

19· ·wines, that's -- that's a -- that's not as serious as

20· ·spirits.· And -- and because it is a substantial change,

21· ·I mean this is a substantial change for the community

22· ·too.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Would it -- are there

·2· ·folks in the neighborhood who might enjoy the

·3· ·convenience of being able to go there and get --

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· I'm -- I'm not in a position

·5· ·to comment.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· -- to get hard liquor just

·7· ·simply rather than have to -- have to go farther away?

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.· It's less than a mile

·9· ·away.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Is there anything to

11· ·balance this up against.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.· It's less than a mile

13· ·away to the local liquor store.· I don't -- I don't

14· ·expect that that's -- I mean so things that are further

15· ·away than a mile are a grocery store, the post office,

16· ·pharmacy.· If those things are further than a mile away

17· ·and we're okay with it, why do we need a liquor store

18· ·closer.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· You're a pretty hard-core

20· ·residential neighborhood.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.· I mean that's --

22· ·that's --
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Not much going on there

·2· ·fortunately.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Yeah.· I mean and then soon

·4· ·there will be a community center across the street and a

·5· ·pool and kids playing.· I don't know if a liquor store

·6· ·across the street from that is such a good thing.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Thanks for coming and

·8· ·thanks for participating.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Thank you for having me and

10· ·thank you for listening.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do we have any other

12· ·questions by any of the board members?· Do you have any

13· ·final questions, Mr. Vining?

14· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· No, I don't.

15· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Thank you

16· ·for your testimony.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ORFANON:· Thank you very much.  I

18· ·appreciate it.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have another

20· ·witness, sir?

21· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Yes, I do.· I'd like to call if

22· ·I could Ms. Katherine Young.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· I'm sitting.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Oh, okay.· I would like to call

·3· ·next Mr. Chris Leptak.

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Leptak, could you

·5· ·-- Mr. Leptak can you please raise your right hand.· Do

·6· ·you swear or affirm to tell the truth and nothing but

·7· ·the truth.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· I do.

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Thank you, sir.· And

10· ·can you please start off by identifying yourself and

11· ·your address please.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Sure.· My name is Chris Leptak.

13· ·I purchased my home at 21 Channing in 2005.· So I'm on

14· ·the same unit block as the store.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Please spell his name for the

16· ·-- Chris how do you spell your last name?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· L-E-P as in Paul, T as in Tom,

18· ·A as in apple, K as in kite.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Your witness, sir.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Did you -- Mr. Leptak, did you

21· ·participate as a member of the Stronghold Civic

22· ·Association ABRA Committee?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· I did.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· In that -- in that capacity I

·3· ·believe you did extensive research into various aspects

·4· ·of both the kinds of places that ABRA gives licenses and

·5· ·does not give licenses; is that correct?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· That is correct.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Are there points in your

·8· ·researches that you'd like to bring out -- bring to our

·9· ·attention?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· I guess the first is as members

11· ·of the ABRA committee have -- have shared you currently

12· ·do not as I understand it grant Class A or B licenses to

13· ·residentially zoned neighborhoods.· I'm guessing you've

14· ·made that decision because there's some value in not

15· ·having those types of stores in residential

16· ·neighborhoods.· In our case our R3 zoning went into

17· ·effect after a store pre-existed.· So the fact that we

18· ·already have a Class B license now asking for a

19· ·substantial Class A license doesn't magically make the

20· ·concerns of why you don't want something in a

21· ·residential neighborhood go away.· So I -- I -- I

22· ·personally don't think that there's -- there's good
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·1· ·value unless ABRA thinks that Class A licenses should go

·2· ·in all R3 neighborhoods.· And so just out of curiosity I

·3· ·wanted to see how many of your licenses currently are in

·4· ·residential neighborhoods.· So from your website I

·5· ·pulled that all down and found that basically there were

·6· ·14 of all your 270 licenses that are in residential

·7· ·neighborhoods.· Of those 14 the vast majority of them

·8· ·are either one or two blocks from a commercially zoned

·9· ·neighborhood.· We're not that situation.· We're R3 on

10· ·our side in Stronghold.· We're R4 across the street in

11· ·Bloomingdale.· So there's -- there's not that type of a

12· ·neighborhood to support it.· And so for those reasons we

13· ·were curious, and ultimately it led to us saying ABRA's

14· ·made good decisions about not granting these de novo in

15· ·an R3, R4, why should we be the exception just because

16· ·we have a store that pre-existed?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Please correct me if I'm wrong,

18· ·but in the opening statement of the Stronghold Civic

19· ·Association I see very strong correspondence and

20· ·additional detail to what you have just said in several

21· ·of the paragraphs of that statement, in our paragraph

22· ·alpha, information pertaining to Stronghold as it
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·1· ·relates to the ABRA application, and three -- three

·2· ·other paragraphs.· Are you familiar with the contents of

·3· ·those paragraphs in the opening statement that the

·4· ·Stronghold Civic Association submitted?

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Yes.· I mean as part of the

·6· ·committee that was the document that we created.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· So you would agree that these

·8· ·are -- not only reiterate what you said but provide

·9· ·further detail in support of what you just said?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Right.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I would like to -- is this part

12· ·of the record?· Can I make a -- a request to admit the

13· ·opening statement?· I don't know if it's in the record

14· ·or not.

15· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· What is -- what is

16· ·it, sir?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· The opening statement of the

18· ·Stronghold Civic Association.· It's the first time I

19· ·think this document has been brought up.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· It's not a part of

21· ·the record until you make it a part of the record.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Oh, I would like to introduce

http://www.olenderreporting.com


·1· ·this as -- as part of the record as it coincides with

·2· ·the remarks Mr. Leptak has just made.

·3· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Have you shown it

·4· ·to --

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Show it to the other side?

·6· ·Here, this is before Exhibit 1.· This is the first

·7· ·document that was in our PIF.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Mr. Chairman, what's in it

·9· ·or who's the author?

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· What's -- what's --

11· ·why is it that you're planning to put -- why is it that

12· ·you want this opening statement to be in the record?

13· ·What's the purpose -- the relevance?

14· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Because of the additional

15· ·detail concerning the researches that Mr. Leptak in

16· ·particular did and contributed to the understanding of

17· ·the Stronghold ABRA Committee which supports the

18· ·findings of our -- our position, the Stronghold --

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, I think since

20· ·he -- since he's here to testify, I think that it would

21· ·be better that you ask him those questions for it to be

22· ·a part of the record rather than you ask The Board to
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·1· ·read it and extrapolate what was meant by that.· So

·2· ·since -- why don't you ask him specific questions and

·3· ·have him put that on the record since it's his --

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· So, Kirby, we can go through

·5· ·the five things and just ask -- well, sorry.· I can't do

·6· ·that.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· But the concern here is in this

·8· ·document are various websites that are linked to

·9· ·specific comments that Mr. Leptak made.· That was my

10· ·concern, that we not delay the process here today by my

11· ·spelling out a web page where there's more that

12· ·supported his --

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, I think it's

14· ·they're statements.· He's a witness.· Let him -- he

15· ·can -- let him testify about the statements.· I think

16· ·that you're asking -- you're asking The Board to --

17· ·which we will try to review everything.· But I think

18· ·you're better off getting on the record by -- since

19· ·he's -- he's here to testify today to us.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· May I just interject

21· ·something?· How do I say it?· If you want us to take

22· ·information from a website, then you need to present it
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·1· ·here because the other side has to see it.· They have to

·2· ·know what they're up against here during this

·3· ·proceeding.· So you can't just say to The Board well,

·4· ·I've got a document and it refers you to some websites

·5· ·and I want you to go look at them.· It don't work that

·6· ·way.· I can't take that as part of my deliberations.· If

·7· ·the -- if the evidence isn't here today, then -- then we

·8· ·don't consider it.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· This is -- they have this.

10· ·This is the document that was submitted.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· No.· But they don't have the

12· ·websites.· They don't -- I -- you know, they don't have

13· ·the documents from the websites.· I'm sure there's data

14· ·and -- and discussion and papers out there on those

15· ·websites that -- that you relied on.· And if that

16· ·information isn't here in a concrete form, we can't take

17· ·it because the other side doesn't have it.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Even if it was on the ABRA

19· ·website?

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Pardon?

21· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Even if it's information from

22· ·the ABRA website?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Well, then it's part of our

·2· ·record and you can us ask us to take -- if it's

·3· ·information from an ABRA website, you can ask us to take

·4· ·administrative note because it is part -- then part of

·5· ·our record.· It's part of the general administrative

·6· ·record for the city, and you can ask us to take

·7· ·administrative note.· But the -- this Envision

·8· ·McMillan -- I'm just looking at one.· I just picked one.

·9· ·You know, I -- we can't use that.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· That's fine.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· You understand, right?

12· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· All it is documentation that

13· ·there's going to be a community center across the

14· ·street.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Right.· But again, you know,

16· ·you understand what I'm saying.· So that's -- that's why

17· ·I don't think this document is very useful to us.

18· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· So why don't you have

19· ·him testify -- I mean normally an opening statement is

20· ·just a statement that's put together by a lawyer to say

21· ·this is my -- this is the presentation -- how I'm going

22· ·to present my case.· I mean you're not quoting laws or
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·1· ·facts, you haven't proved anything as yet.· So he's

·2· ·there.· So why don't you extrapolate from him the

·3· ·information that you're trying to let him testify to

·4· ·that so The Board can --

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Kirby, if I can talk about

·6· ·traffic and safety, how -- how's that?

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Sure.· Go ahead.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· So its been pointed out

·9· ·Stronghold is a series of unit blocks all of which dead

10· ·end into the cemeteries.· So as was also pointed out the

11· ·way that we basically go north, south through the

12· ·neighborhood is through the allies.· The -- the store

13· ·resides at the corner of Channing and North Capitol.

14· ·Channing dead ends.· So ultimately when I'm coming home

15· ·from work many times going southbound on North Capitol

16· ·there is no left-hand turn lane.· So in order to get

17· ·into my street making a left there's double cars parked

18· ·during the peak hours that the storeowners have

19· ·mentioned because you're not allowed to park on North

20· ·Capitol northbound because of the restricted parking.

21· ·So the -- the folks that will patronize the store will

22· ·double park preventing me to make my left-hand turn into
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·1· ·Channing, then causing me to back up traffic on North

·2· ·Capitol getting the honks and horns, et cetera.· The

·3· ·same thing if patrons of the store are also traveling on

·4· ·North Capitol pull into Channing, they then have to do

·5· ·like a three-point turn to try to get in and get into

·6· ·parking spots.· Because we're dead end if someone else

·7· ·is trying to egress the neighborhood at the same time,

·8· ·you're basically going to get traffic jams.· There is no

·9· ·space for people to get by.· The store does not have

10· ·dedicated parking.· They do not have a dedicated loading

11· ·zone.

12· · · · · · · ·So one of the photos that I submitted was a

13· ·Pepsi truck parked on North Capitol during restricted

14· ·hours because that's when they were getting a delivery

15· ·at the store.· And that would be Exhibit 7 from the

16· ·Stronghold.· If the store is now going to have

17· ·additional wares beyond the groceries and -- and snacks

18· ·and stuff that they currently carry, my guess is that

19· ·means additional delivery trucks who are going to be

20· ·delivering different types of spirits and alcohol.· They

21· ·do not have a loading zone.· There is no spot to park on

22· ·Channing Street for those types of trucks because
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·1· ·they're too big.· So the only place they can park is

·2· ·on -- on North Capitol, again which because of the

·3· ·restricted parking there is no parking.· For the North

·4· ·Capitol residents of Stronghold during restricted hours

·5· ·they move their cars off of North Capitol and come on to

·6· ·our side streets because that's how they have to go.

·7· ·Again, this is during peak hours.· That's when the store

·8· ·is having its peak patronage that there -- there is no

·9· ·way to resolve that.· And so it's a real challenge for

10· ·us.

11· · · · · · · ·In terms of littering and such we are

12· ·constantly picking up crap from their store.· It's

13· ·the -- the empty trash bags, the cigarette crap that

14· ·they're -- they're throwing out at the store.· The

15· ·storeowners are not doing that, I fully understand that.

16· ·But it's the -- the patrons that are then basically

17· ·finishing their chips, throwing it on the ground, and it

18· ·blows into our yards.· I wish I would see the

19· ·storeowners.· I have nothing against them.· We -- we buy

20· ·snacks primarily.· But I never see them venturing 20

21· ·feet from their door to actually pick up trash that's

22· ·coming in up the street.· I don't see that they're
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·1· ·thinking of themselves as part of the community.· The

·2· ·fact that they have chosen to go with a Class A license,

·3· ·we're -- at least of all the residents we've talked to

·4· ·no one supports this.· I don't see that they see

·5· ·themselves as part of our community.· And again, we're a

·6· ·very strong community where the residents talk to each

·7· ·other.· I've lived there for 11 years.· I am so ecstatic

·8· ·that we have residents that have raised their families

·9· ·there for generations, we have newcomers, everybody

10· ·talks.· We don't always agree, but we try to ask each

11· ·other's opinions.

12· · · · · · · ·So as a strong community we have now a -- a

13· ·store -- our only store that doesn't see itself as part

14· ·of the community.· And that's a real problem especially

15· ·when it comes to trying to mitigate concerns.· We were

16· ·honestly surprised that there was already a settlement

17· ·agreement in place from 2002 for their Class A -- Class

18· ·B license.

19· · · · · · · ·Getting to Laura's point, the Class B

20· ·licenses, their settlement agreement is already failing

21· ·us.· As you can see from -- from my testimony and others

22· ·and all the -- the quotes we've submitted from the
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·1· ·neighborhood the Class B license settlement agreement

·2· ·means nothing.· People are still urinating, people are

·3· ·still -- parking problems, et cetera.· With a -- with a

·4· ·Class A license in place it's only going to get worse.

·5· ·In the alley behind my home for the most part things are

·6· ·okay.· It's a nuisance, but it's okay.· But as soon as

·7· ·people get drunk, tweaked out, et cetera things are not

·8· ·okay.· People get assaulted, there's wrecks.· The

·9· ·storeowners prior to the -- the current gentlemen was --

10· ·was taken away in handcuffs.· The store has been a

11· ·problem since I've been there for 11 years.· I can't

12· ·speak to it before that.· That's a real challenge, and

13· ·that's again getting back to why we don't have these

14· ·type of stores in residential neighborhoods.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Mr. Leptak, what did you

16· ·say about someone being taken away in handcuffs?· Could

17· ·you please repeat that.· I didn't hear that.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· That was the -- the previous

19· ·storeowner, and I think he's still the owner.· I think

20· ·they're renting from him.· That was about five, six

21· ·years ago basically five cars coming out.· And then we

22· ·find out when we had our first Stronghold meeting on
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·1· ·this topic the storeowner is the one that disclosed that

·2· ·they were robbed with a sawed off shotgun.· We have now

·3· ·had two other robberies at that store since then, since

·4· ·they filed the petition for -- the application.· So it's

·5· ·the safety issue.· If there's a store, the store has

·6· ·basically got a cash revenue.· If the cash revenue is

·7· ·going to increase by having increased alcohol, then

·8· ·there's a likelihood that that's also going to be a

·9· ·greater target for people wanting to come in to rob.

10· ·And that's bringing again guns and things into our

11· ·neighborhood that we don't need.

12· · · · · · · ·It's -- it's a mixed bag with -- with

13· ·Stronghold.· I love my neighbors.· I don't love some of

14· ·the things that happen.· We've had an execution style

15· ·shooting on North Capitol about six years ago.· We've

16· ·had numerous arrests in the neighborhood because people

17· ·get assaulted.· It's -- it's a challenge, but it's

18· ·something that the neighborhood is continuing trying to

19· ·improve.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Any other questions?

21· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Yes.· As a member of the --

22· ·fellow member of the ABRA Committee -- the Stronghold
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·1· ·Civic Association ABRA Committee I believe you're the

·2· ·person who lives closest to the store of all of those

·3· ·who are here today.· Those of us who gathered petition

·4· ·signatures and talked to the entire Stronghold

·5· ·community, we kept hearing over and over again when the

·6· ·subject came up what do you think about the application

·7· ·of a liquor license we kept hearing things such as it's

·8· ·a tolerable nuisance as it is, don't need to make the

·9· ·nuisance worse.· But then many of us noticed getting

10· ·closer down to the store that word tolerable was no

11· ·longer in the vocabulary.· Living as close to the store

12· ·as you do is there anything that you can say firsthand

13· ·or secondhand -- because I know from the signatures that

14· ·you submitted from neighbors on Channing Street, on that

15· ·same block insights of what it is like to be that close

16· ·both in front of your house and -- and behind your

17· ·house?· Is there any comment that you could make because

18· ·you are the closest here today to that store.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Yeah.· I mean the challenges --

20· ·tolerable is -- is a challenge especially when every day

21· ·you're -- you're faced with the parking issue and the

22· ·hanging out in the alley.· So the -- the Class A license
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·1· ·only exacerbates that.· And in talking to my

·2· ·neighborhoods -- unfortunately more from Channing Street

·3· ·couldn't come today.· I do have a letter from my

·4· ·neighbor across the street who had a doctor's

·5· ·appointment.· I'm happy to submit that if possible.· But

·6· ·universally there's 11 houses on our street.· No one is

·7· ·supportive of this, and everybody when they heard about

·8· ·it said hell no, it's bad enough now, things will only

·9· ·get worse.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Thank you.· I don't have any

11· ·other questions.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes, Mr. Short.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Good afternoon, sir.· Your

14· ·testimony has been quite compelling.· And I just wanted

15· ·to add I'm reading the letter from your council member

16· ·who lives in the neighborhood from the honorable Kenneth

17· ·(sic) R. McDuffie.· And for the record it says this

18· ·letter is to our Chairman, Donovan Anderson, Chairman of

19· ·the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board.· And he writes I

20· ·am writing in opposing to the Class A liquor license

21· ·application submitted by Capitol Market, 2501 North

22· ·Capitol Street NE.· Based upon my review of the

http://www.olenderreporting.com


·1· ·application and conversations with the impacted

·2· ·community I have concluded that a Class A liquor store

·3· ·in this small residential neighborhood could have

·4· ·deleterious effects.· I have three basis for my

·5· ·objections.· And I'll stop after I read the objections.

·6· ·The first is peace, order, and quiet of the surrounding

·7· ·community, residential parking needs, and vehicular and

·8· ·pedestrian safety, lack of transparency when the

·9· ·application was submitted.· Now I'll stop there.· But

10· ·that was already in the record because it was submitted

11· ·with the PIF.· Now, would you please describe for

12· ·someone who has never been to your neighborhood or has

13· ·no idea -- you mentioned there were only 11 houses on

14· ·your street.· That means there's only one way in and one

15· ·way out.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Correct.· It's a dead-end

17· ·street.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· So when the fire trucks come or

19· ·the ambulance come or the police department comes it's

20· ·quite congested?

21· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Or even when residents come --

22· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· I understand.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· -- and go.· Yeah.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· So that's every day.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Yeah.· Right.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· But we're talking about

·5· ·emergencies, and that has a terrible effect.· I can tell

·6· ·you that Engine Company Number 12 is the first due at

·7· ·your -- your neighborhood, and they have special

·8· ·instructions about the allies because they're so narrow

·9· ·and about the parking for fear that we might have an

10· ·accident -- the fire department will have an accident

11· ·before they can even get to the houses.· So when I look

12· ·at the picture that's 7 -- Exhibit 7 for anybody who

13· ·doesn't see it -- Exhibit 7 with the Pepsi truck and

14· ·they have no loading docks for the alcohol truck to

15· ·come, I'm just wondering.· I mean we already know

16· ·this -- it's stated earlier it's in an R3 which is very,

17· ·very rare if any in the city and now they want to

18· ·upgrade it.· And I really think that your testimony has

19· ·been very powerful and I want to thank you for taking

20· ·the time to come up today.· I thank all of the neighbors

21· ·for coming up.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Thank you.· And -- and in terms
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·1· ·of the -- the safety issue the -- the ambulances because

·2· ·we live near the tri-hospital complex, Childrens, the

·3· ·veterans, and Washington Health Center the ambulances

·4· ·regularly now go on the opposite side of the street

·5· ·because North Capitol is so backed up with traffic and

·6· ·basically get police escorts to go all the way the wrong

·7· ·way up the street.· So anything that impacts traffic on

·8· ·North Capitol only makes that worse.· And that's why I

·9· ·was surprised that the Pepsi truck sitting there

10· ·blocking traffic when it's not supposed to be.· And that

11· ·was just one time I happened to be driving and happened

12· ·to have my -- my cell phone to take the camera.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· The other picture that you

14· ·mentioned also -- you say you took the picture of the

15· ·loitering?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· I did not.· That was the --

17· ·the --

18· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Jason.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Jason.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Okay.· Not a problem.· I'll --

21· ·I'll get that too.· But anyway, I want to thank you for

22· ·your testimony, sir.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any other

·3· ·questions?· Yes, Mr. Alberti.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Good afternoon -- almost

·5· ·evening.· Thank you for sticking with us.· Okay.

·6· ·Just -- and this is just for the record.· Do you know

·7· ·what the parking restrictions are on North Capitol

·8· ·Street, what the hours are?

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Yeah.· So in terms of peak

10· ·hours traveling north on North Capitol it's restricted

11· ·parking from 4 -- other people said 4 to 6.· I believe

12· ·it's 4 to 6:30.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· In the evening?

14· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· In the evening.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· And then in the morning it's 7

17· ·to 8:30 I believe.· However --

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Which side?· On the east side

19· ·of the street?

20· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· On the northwest side of the

21· ·street.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· On the west side.
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·1· ·Okay.· But on the east side it's 4 to 6:30 or something

·2· ·like that?

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Correct.· And then my

·4· ·understanding based on the -- the McMillan development,

·5· ·that DDOT has recommended the restricted parking both

·6· ·north and south both morning and evening.· So for the

·7· ·northbound traffic, the side of the store it not only

·8· ·would be the current evening restrictions but also the

·9· ·morning restrictions as well.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· And this is a DDOT

11· ·recommendation.· Do you know when the recommendation was

12· ·made?

13· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· It was all part of the -- the

14· ·McMillan development case, the link in my -- I can -- I

15· ·can provide that to you if you'd like.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Well, that's all right.· We'll

17· ·find it.· It's -- but it's a DDOT document, right?

18· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· It's all part of the -- the

19· ·traffic impact study for the McMillan development.· That

20· ·was one of their recommendations.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· For the traffic by DDOT.

22· ·Okay.· Thank you.· Exhibit 7, who -- who took those
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·1· ·pictures, do you know?

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· I did.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Very good.· So you took both

·4· ·the picture of -- the picture of the Pepsi truck and the

·5· ·picture above it?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Yes.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Do you know whose car that is?

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· I believe it's theirs.· I have

·9· ·multiple pictures.· I didn't submit them all from

10· ·different days.· I've got the license plate number.· I'm

11· ·assuming it's the storeowner's.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· But you're not sure.

13· ·All right.· And I ask only because it's parked illegally

14· ·and you have to travel -- at least travel over public

15· ·property -- public space and it may be parked on public

16· ·space for all I know.· I don't know the dimensions of

17· ·their lot, but you may want to look into that.· And you

18· ·mentioned the -- the voluntary agreement, and I found

19· ·that interesting because -- and I'll just since I'm on

20· ·it and I shouldn't be -- well, I'll just go out on a

21· ·limb here.· Were you -- I'll ask this as a question.

22· ·Were you aware that the settlement agreement that --
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·1· ·that exists for this says that the applicant shall not

·2· ·advertise alcoholic beverages or cigarettes on the

·3· ·exterior walls of the establishment?· Were you aware of

·4· ·that?

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· I wasn't even aware there was

·6· ·an agreement until we saw the investigator's report.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· But there is, and so

·8· ·that's what it says.· And I noted that because I was

·9· ·looking at the picture at the top of Exhibit 7, and

10· ·there's a Newport cigarettes ad on the exterior of the

11· ·building.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Right.· And that's why I quite

13· ·honestly was --

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· But you were aware of that so

15· ·I don't have any further questions on that.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Okay.· I was surprised by the

17· ·investigator's report, that there didn't seem to be

18· ·going that one step further especially with an agreement

19· ·in place and finding no violations, but yet there are

20· ·multiple based on the settlement agreement.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· They have a very difficult

22· ·job, and sometimes they don't see everything.· So --
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Completely understood.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Their focus may not be what

·3· ·you would hope it would be, and -- and I don't fault

·4· ·them for that because they have a very difficult job.

·5· ·So --

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· And they have a lot of them.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· -- have a little bit of

·8· ·empathy for them.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· More than anything we were

10· ·surprised that there was one, and then well, wait a

11· ·minute --

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· Okay.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· -- you know.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· All right.· I have no further

15· ·questions.· Thank you.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Thank you.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes, Ms. Miller.

18· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Good afternoon.· I wanted to

19· ·follow up especially on your last comment on the

20· ·voluntary agreement, there being multiple violations of

21· ·the agreement.· What are you referring to?· Are you

22· ·referring to your observations that they have been
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·1· ·violating the agreement, or are you referring to that

·2· ·there's actually been a history at ABRA of -- of their

·3· ·violations?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Well, one, I didn't know that

·5· ·there was an agreement in place.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Right.· Okay.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· But -- but thinking back, you

·8· ·know, their -- the -- the current agreement, my

·9· ·understanding is that there has to be a camera, there's

10· ·not a camera; that they have restrictions about what

11· ·types of things that they can post and advertise.

12· ·Certainly over the 11 years I've lived on Channing

13· ·Street I've seen many different types of -- of different

14· ·posters and things go up.· Albeit the -- the current

15· ·storeowners haven't been there that whole time.· So they

16· ·can't be responsible for everything pre-2013 I guess.

17· ·But there's a long history.

18· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Right.· But are you aware of

19· ·anyone complaining about that to ABRA?· I mean the --

20· ·the party on this voluntary agreement happens to be --

21· ·as you probably know happens to be the ANC.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Right.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· So you would have complained to

·2· ·the ANC who would have complained to --

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· We wouldn't have known to

·4· ·complain because we didn't know there was an agreement.

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· So you didn't know?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· No.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· So now you know.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· No.· And it was odd in that

·9· ·our -- our ANC commissioner at the first meeting of the

10· ·Stronghold association that Laura spoke of at the end of

11· ·February mentioned during that meeting that she had had

12· ·the storeowners over to her house multiple times and

13· ·that they had already crafted this agreement, and that's

14· ·not even letting us know that there was even a petition

15· ·for a Class A change.· And she forgot to let us know.

16· ·She forgot to even let us know at the February meeting,

17· ·and we had to hold an emergency meeting.· And then she

18· ·sends out an e-mail and says, you know, anyone that is

19· ·for or against this please let me know and she gave them

20· ·a 48 hour turnaround on her e-mail time.· I'm sorry.

21· ·That's not really seeking community input.· And

22· ·unfortunately for our ANC that's kind of standard
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·1· ·practice.

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· I think that it often takes

·3· ·this kind of a proceeding for the community to get

·4· ·educated about, you know, their rights and what they can

·5· ·do, you know, with respect to violations.· So I -- I do

·6· ·hope you know that you can make complaints to ABRA

·7· ·though you're not a party to this agreement.· You can't

·8· ·exactly enforce the agreement, but the ANC can.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Right.

10· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· But also, you know, to pay

11· ·attention when there's a renewal if you're having

12· ·problems.· That's often and licensees are most

13· ·responsive to making corrections.· Okay.· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Just for the record I -- and I

15· ·don't want to --

16· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· You want to correct me?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I don't, but I'm going to

18· ·really.· When -- when there's a settlement agreement in

19· ·place anybody can make a complaint, anyone.· Even --

20· ·even though the settlement agreement is between the ANC

21· ·and the licensee, anybody.· It doesn't have to be the

22· ·ANC.· Once that agreement is in some anybody anywhere in
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·1· ·the city can make a complaint --

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Right.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· -- against -- based on

·4· ·something that's not compliant with the settlement

·5· ·agreement.· So if you see something, you are free to

·6· ·make complaint to -- to ABRA.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Thank you.· I mean I'm sure

·8· ·certainly if they're -- they don't have their -- they

·9· ·have signs up, they're not supposed to have signs up,

10· ·our investigator can come out and verify that too and do

11· ·something about it.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Right.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes, Mr. Short.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Also once the ABRA investigator

15· ·comes out you can check the next day if he wrote a

16· ·violation.· And enough violations can cause their

17· ·license either to be revoked or to be seriously fined.

18· ·So if they have the signs up, the investigator comes out

19· ·one week, they don't take them down, you call the next

20· ·week.· They get four or five of them you can bet this

21· ·board can definitely do something.· So if you want us to

22· ·work with you, work with us.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Absolutely.

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· And it's hard too.· I mean to

·4· ·-- to echo what Jason had said we are sincere about

·5· ·wanting this store so succeed.· We're willing to help

·6· ·them write the North Capitol Street grants and things to

·7· ·help improve the property.· We just don't see becoming a

·8· ·liquor store as being an asset for a R3 community.

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Any other questions

10· ·by any of the board members?· Mr. --

11· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· And just because I promised my

12· ·neighbor, can I read her short letter or submit it in

13· ·since she lives two doors down but --

14· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· That's kind of --

15· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Okay.

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I need -- he needs

17· ·--have Mr. Kline submit it.· And we can -- he can make a

18· ·motion to submit it, and then we can decide.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Make a motion here.· Shall I

20· ·make a --

21· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, I think --

22· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· I can -- I can tell her if it
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·1· ·wasn't possible, but I told her I'd try.

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I -- it's -- it's

·3· ·thirdhand.· I don't know what it is.· I mean I think you

·4· ·have a -- you have a notice.· You need to show it to

·5· ·them.· They need to tell me whether or not they object

·6· ·to it, and then I make a ruling.· So --

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· A letter from a neighbor on

·8· ·Channing Street that I propose to the applicant for

·9· ·consideration.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· She's at 10 Channing.· She's

11· ·two -- two doors over.· And the couple that was here

12· ·that left earlier are at 8 Channing.· So they're right

13· ·next to the store.

14· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have a

15· ·position on the letter, sir?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· No.· Thanks.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· For whatever it's

18· ·worth -- I'm sorry.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Ms. Patterson thanks you.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBREKIDAN:· It's not -- it's not --

21· ·it's not necessary to know the details.· It's like --

22· ·it's objection and it's considerations that you -- that
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·1· ·you guys were saying.· So it's not [inaudible 1:46:14].

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· What -- what exhibit

·3· ·number is that?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· It isn't an exhibit at this

·5· ·moment.· I was going to ask how we could get this into

·6· ·the record.· Mr. Leptak brought this in by hand.

·7· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· It is -- it's -- it's

·8· ·going to be in the record.· So what number is it, sir?

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· It would be our Number 13.

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· So it will be

11· ·admitted as Exhibit 13.· So you need to give it to --

12· ·you need to give -- give it 13 and then give it to The

13· ·Board so we can consider that as part of the record.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Thank you.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Number 13 and give it to --

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Someone will come and

17· ·pick it up.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Ms. Walker will take it.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any

20· ·questions for this witness, sir?· Go ahead.· What --

21· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· It's not -- it's not really

22· ·a question.· It's like a comment on that really.· He was
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·1· ·mentioning like he say it's not like things are -- we

·2· ·argue.· It's like a discussion.· So when he say that you

·3· ·saw the -- the Pepsi car or truck was just blocking the

·4· ·way on the peak hours.· So we have control of that one.

·5· ·I understand that case.· So we have control of that one.

·6· ·And then we can tell them that -- not to come on the

·7· ·peak hours.· That we can consider.· And he say also that

·8· ·we don't feel -- we don't go far from the -- from the

·9· ·store, we don't feel like part of the community.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· We can't use this.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Hold on.· Why

12· ·don't -- if you want to ask him a question or when you

13· ·do your closing -- I'm sorry.· Then -- then when you do

14· ·a closing so you can write a note and so you can address

15· ·that in -- in the closing statement.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Okay.· I'll do that then

17· ·because I didn't have no question.· I just [inaudible

18· ·1:47:50].

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Okay.· I'll comment.

21· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Kline, do you

22· ·have any -- any further redirect questions of the
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·1· ·witnesses based on the questions?

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I do not.

·3· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Thank you

·4· ·very much for your testimony, sir.· You may step down.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· Thank you, ABRA.

·6· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have another

·7· ·witness?

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Yes, I do.· I'd like to call

·9· ·Stronghold resident, Ms. Kate Segarra forward please.

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Good afternoon,

11· ·Ms. Segarra.· Can you raise your right hand please.· Do

12· ·you swear or affirm to tell the truth and nothing but

13· ·the truth?

14· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· I do.

15· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Thank you.· Can you

16· ·just start off by telling us your name and your address

17· ·please.

18· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· I am Kate Segarra.· I live at

19· ·2539 North Capitol Street NE which puts me one block

20· ·north of the store.

21· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Please spell your

22· ·name for the record too.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Kate with a K, and Segarra is

·2· ·S-E-G-A-R-R-A.

·3· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Thank you.· Your

·4· ·witness, sir.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· You I understand participated

·6· ·in the Stronghold Civic Association ABRA Committee; is

·7· ·that correct?

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· That's correct.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Can you give us any of your

10· ·impressions perhaps for the sake of saving time,

11· ·anything that we haven't mentioned that occurs to you

12· ·from your observations as a member of that committee or

13· ·from your observations -- personal observations from

14· ·your home on North Capitol Street that I believe you

15· ·said was one block north of the store.

16· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· That's right.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· If you could address that in

18· ·anyway that you feel appropriate.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Uh-huh.· As for the process I

20· ·think we have heard enough about that, and I think that

21· ·Kirby and our president have done a great job of

22· ·organizing us.· So thanks to them.· And as far as my --
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·1· ·I -- I echo all -- all the sentiments I've heard from my

·2· ·fellow neighbors.· I have a few notes here just to -- to

·3· ·sort of go through them from my own personal

·4· ·perspective.· I border North Capitol, and then my back

·5· ·yard borders the alleyway.· So I have two fronts.· So I

·6· ·get litter coming in from my front yard, and I also get

·7· ·litter coming in from my back yard.· And a lot of that

·8· ·litter is -- are candy wrappers and chips which are not

·9· ·related to alcohol I know, but they also include a lot

10· ·of beer cans.· And just to sort of paint you an image of

11· ·the store we submitted a few photos for you guys to see

12· ·and women -- sorry -- about -- about what the store is

13· ·like to show you from the outside.· And what is -- you

14· ·see outside is echoed on the inside in terms of

15· ·investment in -- in upkeep and in image, and I don't

16· ·think it really is serving our community well now.· And

17· ·I don't think that adding liquor is going to push us in

18· ·the right direction.· I moved to Stronghold not quite a

19· ·year ago.· It was my first home to buy in the district.

20· ·I've lived here for almost five years.· I just bought a

21· ·home, I'm really excited, love my neighborhood, love my

22· ·neighbors, really tight knit community.· I feel
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·1· ·relatively safe there.· My partner owns a business on U

·2· ·Street.· He's a bar owner so I'm definitely not a

·3· ·teetotaler, and I definitely know what it means to own a

·4· ·small business and I understand the struggles for sure.

·5· ·As someone that lives in the community I don't feel

·6· ·served.· For example, I've been there twice to buy ice.

·7· ·Why do I avoid the store?· Because it's not offering

·8· ·things that me or anyone that I know wants to buy.· I'm

·9· ·not there to buy a single tall boy of beer.· And they

10· ·said that their sales are most -- are 50 percent beer

11· ·and wine.· I would ask them to check their numbers.

12· ·From just observations of who's coming out of that store

13· ·and what they have in their hands it's mostly single

14· ·serves of beer.· And so calling it a grocery store I

15· ·think is kind of a kind term.· The kind of groceries

16· ·that they have on sale there are -- are rather limited.

17· ·It's a lot of candy.· Children do go in there to buy

18· ·candy.· So you'll be having little kids coming in after

19· ·school that are buying candy in the same line that most

20· ·people are buying lotto tickets and beer.· Then they

21· ·come out, they consume them on the premises if the

22· ·premises is a sidewalk.· They're constantly drinking
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·1· ·outside of the store.· They're drinking in the

·2· ·alleyways.· They're coming from the neighboring

·3· ·neighborhoods to the store to consume their beer.

·4· ·There's gambling in the alley.· They're -- they're

·5· ·buying lotto tickets and scratching them off and then

·6· ·throwing them in my yard.· It's a nuisance, and

·7· ·tolerable is a question mark.· But then I -- like many

·8· ·of my fellow neighbors have said it will just exacerbate

·9· ·these existing issues.· And as a woman that's often

10· ·alone -- because my husband or long-term partner owns a

11· ·bar and works late at night, I'm often alone when I'm

12· ·walking.· And I will purposefully avoid going in front

13· ·of that store because of the loitering, the catcalls are

14· ·incessant, the hey little girl, what you doing and

15· ·they're drinking their beer.· That's not fun.· And then

16· ·I go and ride my bike -- because North Capitol is really

17· ·dangerous as a bike rider so I ride through the back.

18· ·And then I go extra fast past that liquor store alleyway

19· ·because people are always loitering and drinking their

20· ·beers.· And so I try to go really quickly because for

21· ·example there was a sawed off shotgun robbery about

22· ·three months after I bought my home at that liquor
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·1· ·store.· The whole sidewalk was blocked off.· I couldn't

·2· ·walk home.· I had to go around the block and then come

·3· ·back around because there was police tape.· So I'm not

·4· ·meaning to ramble.· I'm trying to be sensitive to

·5· ·everyone's time, and these are my personal observations

·6· ·from living there from August of last year to now.· And

·7· ·I think I've hit all my -- all my notes.· And just to,

·8· ·you know, reiterate this is a -- a neighborhood.· It's a

·9· ·strong knit neighborhood, and I don't see why we should

10· ·make an exception for this when they were grandfathered

11· ·in, it's already an allowance and then to go the extra

12· ·mile.· I will say that I would be willing to -- I would

13· ·also -- I'm totally into them improving their store and

14· ·offering more things that the community wants.· If it

15· ·were actually a grocery store, I really would shop there

16· ·and I would go and buy things.· I just don't see

17· ·anything on offer that's suiting me as a community and

18· ·homeowner.· And I am very much worried about my property

19· ·value.· Thank you.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any other

21· ·questions for her?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I don't.· I'm very pleased and

http://www.olenderreporting.com


·1· ·I hope The Board shares my pleasure that these few

·2· ·number of witnesses have each touched from a very

·3· ·personal point of view on things that we have brought

·4· ·out on a more general way.

·5· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any

·6· ·questions you want to ask of this witness?

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· No.· Thanks.

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do we have any

·9· ·questions by any board members?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Yeah.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Alberti.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· How often do you see loitering

13· ·in the alley?

14· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· I -- when I drive by or walk

15· ·by it is the majority of the time.· So I would say three

16· ·out of four times there's going to be someone.

17· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· So generally when are

18· ·you --

19· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Going by?

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· -- going by the alley?

21· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· In the evenings.· They're not

22· ·open very late which I am thankful for because I can
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·1· ·only imagine how bad it would be.· So I don't know.

·2· ·Between like five and seven --

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· -- getting home from work.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· So they're not open

·6· ·late.· What -- what -- what's your impression of when

·7· ·they're open.

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· I think that they close around

·9· ·eight or nine.· When do you guys close?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· You can't ask them.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Sorry.· I don't know.· I just

12· ·know that when I come home late at night, you know, from

13· ·being out that this -- the gates are closed.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· All right.

15· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Yeah.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Is there loitering at that

17· ·hour?

18· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· No.· When it is closed there's

19· ·no loitering.· No one is out front.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· So if I'm understanding your

21· ·testimony is it correct to say that you see a

22· ·correlation between when they're open and when you see
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·1· ·loitering in the alley?

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Correct.· And I also see a

·3· ·correlation between not just loitering in the alley but

·4· ·foot traffic in the alley going to and returning with

·5· ·beer cans and frequency of litter in my yard with the

·6· ·store hours.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· In your yard.· The front yard

·8· ·or back yard?

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Both.· It depends on which

10· ·route they take.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· So --

12· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· I also see people leaving in

13· ·their cars driving north on the alley which is supposed

14· ·to be a one-way now.· So they drive north really quickly

15· ·past my house with cans of beer open.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· In the car?

17· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Did they buy it at the store?

18· ·I don't know.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.

20· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Don't know if they did that,

21· ·but they are --

22· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· We don't know.· All right.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Yeah.· So I couldn't say.

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you see loitering

·3· ·on that corner at times when they're not open?

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Not in my memory.· Not in my

·5· ·memory, but I -- you know, not in my memory.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· I don't know.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Thank you.· I have no further

·9· ·questions.

10· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· It must happen.· But yeah.

11· ·Yes.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Ms. Miller.

13· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Good afternoon still.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Hi.

15· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· I just wanted to ask

16· ·you -- I know you have only lived there a short time

17· ·relatively.· But have you ever contacted ABRA or the

18· ·police with respect to, you know, seeing this open

19· ·drinking outside?

20· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· I have not.

21· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· And can you say why you have

22· ·not?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· It seemed -- it's so out in

·2· ·the open.· I mean North Capitol is a very busy street,

·3· ·and we do have a regular police presence in our

·4· ·neighborhood which I'm thankful for because we do have

·5· ·incidents of crime, and it seems to be tolerated.· So --

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Yeah.· That's why.

·8· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· Thank you.

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· You're welcome.

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any

11· ·follow-up questions for her?

12· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· No, I don't.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any

14· ·follow-up questions for her?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· No.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· No thanks.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Thank you.· Thank you

18· ·for your testimony here.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. SEGARRA:· Thank you.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· You can step down.

21· ·Do you have any other witnesses?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Yes, we do.· Our final
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·1· ·witness -- pardon?

·2· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Don't get us excited with your

·3· ·final witness.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I'd like to ask Ms. --

·5· ·Ms. Katherine Young as our next witness.

·6· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Ms. Young, can you

·7· ·raise your right hand please.· Do you swear or affirm to

·8· ·tell the truth and nothing but the truth?

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· I do.

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Please be seated and

11· ·please let us know your name and your address please.

12· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· My name is Katherine Young.  I

13· ·live at 16 Franklin Street NE.· And I'll try to expedite

14· ·this and just only address the points that have not been

15· ·brought up.· There are only two actually.· And just as a

16· ·background I was a founding member of the Stronghold

17· ·Concerned Citizens in 1990.· So we've lived at that

18· ·address since 1987.· And then I was vice president of

19· ·the Stronghold Civic Association after that.· I request

20· ·that you not grant a Class A liquor license to the

21· ·Capitol Market at Channing Street for these reasons.· So

22· ·I walk all the time.· I don't drive.· I don't have a
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·1· ·car.· My husband has the car.· I walk maybe on North

·2· ·Capitol Street I'd say back and forth six or seven to

·3· ·ten times a day.· And I particularly enjoy walking down

·4· ·along the cemetery edge which includes the Channing

·5· ·Street -- walking in front of the market.· So we're

·6· ·talking anywhere from six in the morning to sometimes 10

·7· ·at night on different errands and different reasons to

·8· ·do things.· So as I walk towards Rhode Island Avenue

·9· ·that's one direction I -- I always note that there's a

10· ·liquor store right at 1st -- 1st and Rhode Island

11· ·already and then at 4th Street -- that's northwest.

12· ·North -- northeast there are liquor stores at 4th and

13· ·Rhode Island.· So it -- it -- you know, just to re-affy

14· ·what everybody has been saying ours is a residential

15· ·neighborhood.· When I get off the bus I try to embrace

16· ·the culture of drinking.· And this goes to your

17· ·question.· What does it mean to have an open can of

18· ·beer, right?· I'm not going to go up to somebody and say

19· ·you can't drink beer.· And in fact, those are my

20· ·neighbors.· And so something that's not mentioned here

21· ·that's sort of the elephant in the room is the fact that

22· ·the loiterers or what are called loiterers, they're our
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·1· ·neighbors a lot of them.· And these are older men, no

·2· ·jobs, no family.· They're living in rooming houses

·3· ·either in Stronghold or across the street.· I -- I try

·4· ·to be patient with them.· I want them to be my common

·5· ·humanity.· I don't want to push them out of my life.· On

·6· ·the other hand, what they're doing is exactly what Kate

·7· ·was saying, they're giving me catcalls, they're abusing

·8· ·me as I walk, they insult me as I walk.· But I'm trying

·9· ·not to insult them by speaking against them, by speaking

10· ·against their interaction with our storeowners.· But you

11· ·see what we're up against.

12· · · · · · · ·And I'm so grateful to Mr. Short for

13· ·bringing up the fact that our neighborhoods get -- get

14· ·destroyed, I don't know, dissipated.· You know, there's

15· ·no positive energy that comes up.· So I watch the kids

16· ·with the candy coming out when I get off the bus at

17· ·Channing or at Evarts Street and then in the same breath

18· ·I say hello or try to repel the insult by my neighbor.

19· ·So how do you deal with that?· So I'm asking you guys to

20· ·really pay attention to the quality of life that -- that

21· ·we have to go through every day.· I also want to say one

22· ·other thing which is that I would love to help you both,
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·1· ·and -- and I really mean that.· I would go -- I would

·2· ·get you a $100,000 D.C. small business loan to help you

·3· ·figure out what the neighborhood needs on both sides of

·4· ·North Capitol Street, to sell those groceries that are

·5· ·important, keep up your wine and beer.· I don't see

·6· ·anything wrong with that.· If people want to complain,

·7· ·fine.· But in other words, to find a solution that is

·8· ·going to take us away from -- from a Class A request and

·9· ·to empower our neighborhood to help the guys that are

10· ·suffering from the fact that they could get these one

11· ·off beers.· I have no comment about lotto, and that's

12· ·about all I want to say.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any other

14· ·questions, sir?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I -- I do.· I think one

16· ·pertaining both to Ms. Young's testimony and Ms. Segarra

17· ·before -- before her particularly because of women,

18· ·their experience -- firsthand experience of women.· So

19· ·often in my own --

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I need you to ask her

21· ·a question, sir.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· The question is much discussion
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·1· ·has occurred here between the existing requirements for

·2· ·the settlement agreement with -- which is for example

·3· ·cigarette signs out front, open containers of -- of

·4· ·alcohol, things that we know are violations of the law.

·5· ·But what I have her you say and a couple of other

·6· ·witnesses say there is a great deal of tolerance in the

·7· ·Stronghold community as it is right now.· These are our

·8· ·neighbors and they're a little bit over the edge.· We

·9· ·use very advisedly that this is -- for many people this

10· ·is a tolerable nuisance.· And my perception is many of

11· ·the words that you said and some of the witnesses before

12· ·you is -- what is triggering our presence here today is

13· ·the application for a Class A license may be the straw

14· ·that breaks the camel's back.· This is going a little

15· ·bit too far.· This is beyond tolerable.· Would you like

16· ·to comment on that?· Do you agree with that or can

17· ·you -- would you like to comment on the tolerance that

18· ·I'm hearing in what you said?

19· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· Yeah.· I agree that liquor --

20· ·selling spirits at that would exacerbate.· I agree

21· ·with -- with the former witnesses.· And in fact, I've

22· ·gotten testimony from -- for that effect from -- from
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·1· ·young guys who live in Franklin Commons who -- who are

·2· ·looking at the drinkers.· And they said we already go

·3· ·down to Rhode Island Avenue for our liquor, we don't

·4· ·need it here and it would be too expensive and we don't

·5· ·want it.· And they're looking at their older -- at the

·6· ·older generation who can't take their -- their beer.

·7· ·They said we don't -- we want to not be a part of that.

·8· ·So yes, answer I agree with, you know, not granting a

·9· ·Class A license very clear.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· The only question I have.

11· ·Thank you.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Any -- yes,

13· ·Ms. Miller.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Do they have any questions?

15· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I'm sorry.· Do you

16· ·guys have any questions you want to ask?

17· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· No questions.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· No thanks.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Ms. Miller.

20· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· I -- I just want to thank you

21· ·for your testimony, that I think I heard a lot of

22· ·compassion in that and I heard -- you know, I understand
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·1· ·-- or at least I understand a lot of -- of what's been

·2· ·said today and that -- I just want to say that -- that

·3· ·you all sound like a very supportive compassionate

·4· ·community which is -- is not always the case here and

·5· ·that I -- I hope that -- I've heard that you all want to

·6· ·work together.· And I hope that -- that you are

·7· ·successful in that way however this turns out.· But I

·8· ·just want to say that I did -- I did hear that and I'm

·9· ·impressed with it.· Thank you.· I don't have any

10· ·questions.

11· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· Thank you.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Silverstein.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· I'd just like to very

14· ·quickly echo Ms. Miller's comments and thank you all,

15· ·thank everyone who has testified here.· There's been

16· ·decency, compassion, and concern, and that's all the

17· ·best -- it's the best of what we see in the District of

18· ·Columbia.· Thank you.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Alberti.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I'm going to ask some

21· ·questions.· My job is to get information on the record

22· ·so that whatever we decide we can support it either way.
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·1· ·So you said that you walk by and you have to deal with

·2· ·comments from people outside of the establishment.· Is

·3· ·that what you testified to?

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· Standing on the corner.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Standing on the corner.

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· Yeah.· There are a bunch of guys

·7· ·on both sides of North Capitol Street, and I -- so when

·8· ·I cross on Channing from northwest to northeast or I

·9· ·walk down from Franklin Street -- so these guys that

10· ·have beers and they're going back.· It depends on --

11· ·sometimes time of day and how many beers they've had

12· ·influences what they're going to say.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· So these are people who you

14· ·believe have been drinking in public?

15· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· A lot.· Yeah.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.

17· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· Let's say for maybe three or

18· ·four hours before I've seen them.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· And they're -- when you say on

20· ·the corner are they --

21· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· They're standing on the corner

22· ·of Channing NE and North Capitol Street near the store.
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· So this would be --

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· Right in front of the store.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· So am I correct in assuming

·4· ·that this is sort of directly in front of the

·5· ·establishment?

·6· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· They stand and they walk and

·7· ·they go back and forth and they go back to the allies.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Back and forth between where?

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· Between any of the streets north

10· ·of the store, and also they go back into the allies

11· ·behind where Mr. Leptak lives.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· And do you feel

13· ·uncomfortable?

14· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· I know most of them.· The people

15· ·that I don't know I -- I don't feel comfortable.

16· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Do you feel harassed?

17· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· Yes.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· How often does this happen?

19· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· God, I -- I walk there every

20· ·day.· The harassing comments let's say every two days.

21· ·The nice comments, the friendly -- there's friendly

22· ·harass and there's not friendly harass.· The friendly
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·1· ·harass I can deal with.· But the not friendly harass is

·2· ·really annoying.

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· And how often?

·4· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· I'd say once every two or three

·5· ·days, and it's not necessarily just that they've been

·6· ·there.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Is there any particular time

·8· ·of day?

·9· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· What's that?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Any particular time of day --

11· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· Mostly later in the day.· But

12· ·there have been times at 10 or -- 10 or 11 in the

13· ·morning when there are guys standing out there.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I apologize for having to ask

15· ·these questions, but it's important that if you want

16· ·that information to be on the record, that we have it --

17· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· Yes.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· -- on the record.

19· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· That would be great.

20· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Thank you.

21· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· Thank you.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Any other questions
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·1· ·by any of the board members?· No, you're not -- Ms. --

·2· ·Ms., you're not -- you're not quite --

·3· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· Oh, okay.

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any other

·5· ·questions that you need to ask?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I have no further questions for

·7· ·this witness.

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you guys have any

·9· ·other questions you want to ask her based on the Board's

10· ·questions.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· No, we don't.

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Thank you.· You can

13· ·step down.· Thank you, ma'am.

14· · · · · · · ·MS. YOUNG:· Thank you.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Thank you for your testimony.

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any other

17· ·witnesses?

18· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· We have no further witnesses.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you rest?

20· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· Pardon?

21· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you rest meaning

22· ·that you have rested your case?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I rest -- is it correct that we

·2· ·would be able to make a closing statement?

·3· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes.· Yes.· So -- but

·4· ·prior to -- or during this process do you need to call

·5· ·like any rebuttal witness in a sense that you might have

·6· ·heard someone said something that you need to call a

·7· ·witness to rebut the statement?

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· No.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· That would be --

10· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· How about exhibits?

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· It's

12· ·both.· It's both.· It's available to both parties.

13· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· All right.

14· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· So did you hear --

15· ·I'll ask you first.· Did -- did you hear some testimony

16· ·that was stated throughout these proceedings that you

17· ·believe that you need to address -- to address it to

18· ·directly rebut the testimony that was given?

19· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.· It's like --

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I'm sorry.· Yes or

21· ·no?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yes.
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· You're

·2· ·still -- you're still under oath.· So what is it that

·3· ·you are rebutting, sir?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· I mean from what they say --

·5· ·from what they say just whatever they say and things

·6· ·that we can arrange and things that we are under control

·7· ·of us we can do it.· And things that [inaudible 07:3]

·8· ·present I can just mention some of them.· Like I said,

·9· ·this was kind of recommendation, track us or whatever,

10· ·that track us or whatever, anybody track us.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· You're still going to

12· ·have -- you're still going to have an opportunity to

13· ·make a closing statement to wrap up your case.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Okay.· So that's -- that's

15· ·what I am doing now.

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· So -- so

17· ·that's not there yet.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Exactly.

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· So what I

20· ·was asking you -- say some witness stated something or

21· ·to say you said something or then you can say no, I did

22· ·not state that.· That's what a rebuttal witness is.· All
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·1· ·right.· So you're not going to call a rebuttal witness,

·2· ·right?· Is that yes, no?

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Are you asking me a question

·4· ·that if one of the witnesses, they --

·5· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Stated something that

·6· ·you know that is false and so therefore you have direct

·7· ·evidence to contradict the statement that the person

·8· ·made.

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.

10· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· You're

11· ·still under oath.· So what is it?· What -- what is the

12· ·testimony that you're going to give that directly

13· ·contradicts testimony?

14· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· It's -- it's not like a -- a

15· ·big point, but just the part of the -- the complication

16· ·that they are mentioning.· The robbery was mentioned

17· ·like in two testimonies happening.· It's -- from the

18· ·time that we did the -- start the application it was one

19· ·time.· So there were mentioning like more times.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Thank

21· ·you.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· You're welcome.
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·1· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you have any

·2· ·rebuttal witness meaning that testimony that either was

·3· ·given by either party, that you have direct testimony

·4· ·that -- that will directly rebut the testimony that was

·5· ·given by either of them?

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· No, I do not.

·7· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Now you

·8· ·have an opportunity to do closing.· Do you want a break

·9· ·or do you want -- I'm sorry.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Do they want their exhibits?

11· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· What about the exhibits?

12· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I thought that he

13· ·submitted all -- all right.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Can we -- can we go over what

15· ·he submitted?

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· What

17· ·we're -- I thought all -- all right.· The only document

18· ·that I think that was -- was the opening statement.· And

19· ·we don't -- normally opening statement doesn't have

20· ·something -- are there any other documents, sir, that

21· ·you need to make a part of the record that you have in

22· ·front of you?
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·1· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· We submitted the opening

·2· ·statement, 12.

·3· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Can you tell us what

·4· ·the documents are again, sir.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· The specific exhibits?

·6· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes.

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· This is directly -- I'm reading

·8· ·directly out of the PIF.· The -- the Number 1 was a

·9· ·four -- two pages, copies of the flyers that were handed

10· ·out to all 270 houses in Stronghold for our four

11· ·meetings.· Number 2 was a copy of the Stronghold Civic

12· ·Association's initial protest letter to ABRA.· Number 3

13· ·was a copy of the Ward 5 council member's letter to ABRA

14· ·concerning this case.· Number 4 is copies of the

15· ·signatures on the petition that we discussed in protest

16· ·of this application.· I believe it was eight pages.· The

17· ·original is here, but these were copies we turned in.

18· ·Number 5 was excerpts of comments from members of the

19· ·community who wished to not include their name but to

20· ·express specific points -- comments about existing

21· ·conditions and their thoughts about the Class A license.

22· ·Number 6 is two photos of the store in current
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·1· ·condition.· One was looking straight on at the door, and

·2· ·another was with a group of people with open cans of

·3· ·beer in front of it.· Number 7 is two photographs of

·4· ·current traffic conditions.· It includes a white SUV

·5· ·parked on the sidewalk in one and a picture of I think

·6· ·it's a beer or a Pepsi truck on North Capitol Street

·7· ·unloading in the other one.· Number 8 is the police

·8· ·complaints report that we received from the Metropolitan

·9· ·Police Department for 2501 North Capitol Street.· Number

10· ·9 is the 1979 Board of Zoning adjustment denial of a

11· ·request for substantial increase in store operations

12· ·which was submitted simply because of the overlap and

13· ·the concerns raised in Paragraph 10.· Number 10 is the

14· ·March 2016 ANC 5E resolution concerning the Stronghold

15· ·Civic Association protest.· Number 11 was the written

16· ·testimony of -- of Katherine Young.· Number 12 was the

17· ·ABRA roadmap that our president Laura Jackson used as

18· ·a -- a key to help us navigate the ABRA process.· Number

19· ·13 was the letter from a resident, Ms. Patterson on

20· ·Channing Street, that was brought in in person by

21· ·Mr. Leptak.· Those are the exhibits.

22· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And I had asked you
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·1· ·earlier and I think you had stated that you don't have

·2· ·any problems with any of these documents.· Is that

·3· ·correct, sir?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· Say that again.

·5· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I said I had asked

·6· ·you earlier when -- once we talked about it are there --

·7· ·any of the documents that were just mentioned, do you

·8· ·have any problem with admitting those documents in the

·9· ·record?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· No.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· So they

12· ·are part of the record.· I just want to ask --

13· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Mr. Chairman.

14· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Did he say that he was

16· ·going to include Exhibit Number 5 which were the

17· ·unattributed statements of neighbors that had -- did not

18· ·have names on them?

19· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes.· He -- he did

20· ·state that, and The Board will take it for whatever it's

21· ·worth because there was no objection to it.

22· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Did you ask him about
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·1· ·that?

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I am going to ask

·3· ·him.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Okay.· Great.

·5· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· I know

·6· ·that there was testimony earlier about the DDOT study

·7· ·that was made regarding the traffic common, some study

·8· ·that was done regarding the -- the McMillan Park.· Are

·9· ·you asking The Board to take administrative notice of

10· ·this DDOT study meaning that we will accept that it's a

11· ·study that was done by the city and we will consider

12· ·that?

13· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I would if -- if The Board

14· ·feels it's relevant.· I could provide additional detail.

15· ·That is --

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Then The Board will

17· ·not consider it then.

18· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· So may I interject?· I mean,

19· ·Mr. Vining -- well, I'll speak for myself.· I don't know

20· ·whether I'll consider it relevant or not because I

21· ·haven't seen it.· But I would like the opportunity,

22· ·since it is a public document, a public government
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·1· ·document that's in -- in the public purview.· And we

·2· ·have the ability to take administrative notice.· I would

·3· ·like to leave open the option that I could -- that --

·4· ·that there might be something there that's relevant.· So

·5· ·since I haven't seen it, I can't rule out that it's not

·6· ·relevant.· And Mr. Vining said well, if The Board thinks

·7· ·it's relevant.· Well, I don't know.· So I would -- I

·8· ·would like the opportunity to take it in as

·9· ·administrative record and then decide once I see it what

10· ·weight I will give it.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Well, the only

12· ·problem with that, Mr. -- Mr. Alberti, is that the

13· ·witness is the one who tell The Board to consider

14· ·documents.· The -- there was testimony regarding the

15· ·document.· I asked the witness whether or not the

16· ·witness wants us to take administrative notice of the

17· ·document, and the witness says no.· And so therefore

18· ·because the witness says no, then it can not be part of

19· ·the record because they're the only person who can move

20· ·a document into the record.· It's their document that I

21· ·was giving them an opportunity to make a part of the --

22· ·the record, and he said no.· It can't be -- it's a yes
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·1· ·or no.· It can't be -- we can't -- I can't say well, I

·2· ·need this document in the record if he does not want us

·3· ·to -- to make his document a part of the record.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· Okay.· I would --

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. LEPTAK:· I would be happy to have it in

·6· ·the record.

·7· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Sir, it's not you to

·8· ·say that.· It's the representative -- the representative

·9· ·to state that.

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I will just -- I will just

11· ·tell Mr. Vining it will make my job much more difficult,

12· ·Mr. Vining.

13· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· What do you want to

14· ·do, sir?

15· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· If The Board would like --

16· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· It can't be if, sir.

17· ·You tell me what you want us to do.· It's your document.

18· ·You tell me whether or not -- sir, if you're in court,

19· ·the judge will -- would probably lock you up for 30 days

20· ·for being -- but it's not a court.· So you have had an

21· ·opportunity, sir.· It's your document.· You tell us

22· ·whether or not you want us to take administrative notice
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·1· ·of the document.· I -- part of the problem is that

·2· ·we're -- if we do that, they have seen the document,

·3· ·they don't know what's in it.· But I'm asking you to

·4· ·tell me what you want us to do.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· It -- I would request that

·6· ·the -- The Board take into consideration Zoning Case

·7· ·Number 13-14 for the comments made by Mr. Leptak.

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· That's not the same

·9· ·document.· You know, I have no idea what document you're

10· ·talking about now, sir.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· He was talking about the DDOT

12· ·recommendations which are folded into that zoning order

13· ·decision.

14· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· As contingencies on the

16· ·project.· They're part of the that, 13-14.

17· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· So what is it?· I'm

18· ·sorry.

19· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· 13-14.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· I'm sorry.· Whose

21· ·document is it again?

22· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· It's D.C. Zoning Commission.
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·1· ·That's the order -- the order and decision Number 13-14.

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· 13-14?

·3· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· That's correct.

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.

·5· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Mr. Chairman.

·6· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yes, ma'am.

·7· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· First of all, I wanted to know

·8· ·what -- what year is that?

·9· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· 2013.· 13-14.

10· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· 2013.

11· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· It's always 2013.

12· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Okay.· But second of all, I

13· ·think that the APA speaks to this, that if we're going

14· ·to be relying on a -- on a zoning case that's not even

15· ·in the record today, that -- that the other party should

16· ·have a chance to address it.· I mean I don't -- it

17· ·doesn't seem fair, and I think that's what the APA says.

18· ·So I would just suggest that if we're going to rely on

19· ·it, that they -- that this party also have a chance to

20· ·address it.

21· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· Okay.· Can we -- can we leave

22· ·the record open and they can address it?

http://www.olenderreporting.com


·1· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Yeah.· Yeah.· We could do that

·2· ·if we rely on it.· We may not rely on it.· You don't

·3· ·know.· We don't know.· We haven't seen it.

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Do you know what

·5· ·we're talking about, sir?· Do you know what we're

·6· ·talking about?

·7· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· About the parking.

·8· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Yeah.· Do you have

·9· ·any idea what we're talking about?

10· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· I don't.

11· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Okay.· Since you have

12· ·no idea what we're talking about, then The Board is not

13· ·going to consider it.· Okay.· I think it's unfair for us

14· ·to rely on a document that -- what?· Go ahead, sir.

15· · · · · · · ·MR. ABRAHAM:· That the -- the thing is

16· ·talking about R3 does this one.· I don't know whether

17· ·this is court of the law or --

18· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· And -- and that's why

19· ·I'm saying because you're stating that you have no idea

20· ·what it is and I -- I think it's unfair that I'm going

21· ·to -- would have to direct you where to go find this

22· ·document and it's unfair.· So therefore it will not be
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·1· ·considered as part of the -- and The Board cannot

·2· ·consider this because I think it's unfair since you're

·3· ·saying that you have no idea what it was.· And I don't

·4· ·think it's my job to give you instruction how to find

·5· ·this law for you to read it and for you to say I object

·6· ·to it or not.· Okay.· So it will not be considered as

·7· ·part of the case.· Okay.· Thank you.· All right.· That's

·8· ·my ruling on that issue.· All right.· Regarding -- all

·9· ·right.· Now -- now is an opportunity for you to wrap up

10· ·your case.· And I'm going to take a ten minute break

11· ·because I need to -- I'm not feeling well.· So I need to

12· ·take -- to stop for ten minutes.· And so when we come

13· ·back you have five minutes to wrap up your case.

14· ·Basically you can tell us what is it that you present

15· ·and why is it that you believe that this board should

16· ·grant you the B license.· For the protest -- protestant

17· ·the protestant's position is that they need to tell me

18· ·what is it that they have presented and why is it that

19· ·they think that this -- that The Board should not grant

20· ·the A license because it's not appropriate for the

21· ·jurisdiction -- for the -- for the area.· Okay.· And so

22· ·you have five minutes to speak.· And so it's 5:15, and
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·1· ·welcome back -- we will be in recess for ten minutes.

·2· ·Okay.· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · · ·(A recess was taken.)

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· We're --

·5· ·we're back on the record.· So this -- we're at the point

·6· ·in the case where you now wrap up your case and give a

·7· ·closing argument.· So basically you'll tell -- let us

·8· ·know what it is that you've applied for and why is it

·9· ·that you believe that you have proven to The Board that

10· ·we should provide you the license that you applied for.

11· ·And so you have five minutes.

12· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Okay.· We, Capitol Market

13· ·presenting our case as brief as possible saying that we

14· ·are applying for a liquor license to accommodate all

15· ·incoming customers taking in consideration that the

16· ·need -- the need of our community which is Stronghold

17· ·is -- we have a bit in consideration to -- to get what

18· ·they [inaudible 20:21].· And all the worriness or

19· ·preoccupations that have been mentioned we cannot just

20· ·arguing that it's not present.· But just we can take in

21· ·like a recommendation and to -- to accommodate things as

22· ·needed.· They -- they are saying that about the pick up
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·1· ·time when trucks are coming.· We'll -- we have full

·2· ·control of that one.· We can tell them to come only in

·3· ·the early -- in the early morning time up to 11:00.· And

·4· ·the loitering is just we're going to start camera

·5· ·viewing the outside so we can every time when people

·6· ·come to the outside and then just tell them that's not

·7· ·allowed.· Even though they are -- like everybody

·8· ·mentioned they are part of the community.· Just we're

·9· ·going to tell them that not to hand drinking the beer.

10· ·And -- and also one of our -- the testimonies presenting

11· ·that we are not feeling the part of community.· Me, I've

12· ·been working -- I had a -- a store in North Capitol

13· ·Street [inaudible 21:33].· It's like every day fighting

14· ·was -- was a lot of crazy stuff like that.· When I come

15· ·in here in 2013 I feel like safe.· I feel like I'm

16· ·with -- with -- with friends, with parents.· So for me

17· ·being like them I'm -- just I feel just very welcome on

18· ·that communities.· So I feel from my inside maybe I

19· ·didn't apply it.· But from my inside I feel very part of

20· ·the community, and I will extend my hand to do -- to

21· ·feel and to make them feel that I'm part of the

22· ·community too.· We do -- we do participate on the -- on
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·1· ·the occasions.· So I think that's -- we're going to --

·2· ·we're going to stress and, you know, feel them that we

·3· ·are part of them.

·4· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Thank you.· Yes, sir.

·5· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· You -- you have heard today

·6· ·personal testimony, firsthand accounts of the main

·7· ·points that were in our protest letter to you, people

·8· ·discussing peace, littering, loitering, all these things

·9· ·identified firsthand, first person, traffic safety,

10· ·specific -- specific incidents, firsthand accounts of --

11· ·of parking, the lack of parking at -- at the store, the

12· ·clogging of Channing Street and North Capitol Street.

13· ·These are all addressing the -- the personal safety

14· ·issues, the -- the people who have testified about

15· ·walking in front of that store and the uneasy feeling

16· ·that occurs sometimes especially to the women who are

17· ·passing there.· We are addressing issues that I hope

18· ·that you will see relevant to the appropriateness that

19· ·this board must continue -- must consider.· The

20· ·tolerance -- the term tolerance that we so often heard

21· ·talking with our community, this is a tolerable nuisance

22· ·at best.· And as we mentioned and so many people
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·1· ·mentioned when you get down close to Channing Street the

·2· ·word tolerable itself comes off so many comments.· But

·3· ·what I realize thinking about Class B agreement that's

·4· ·in existence and as adults living with this we see open

·5· ·containers of beer.· We see violations of the law, minor

·6· ·ones, but we are tolerant of this.· As one or two of the

·7· ·witnesses have said many in this group that we're

·8· ·talking about conducting the loitering, these are our

·9· ·neighbors and this is -- this is unfortunate.· But we

10· ·would like to work with that.· And a perception that I

11· ·get is that the community believes that adding liquor to

12· ·that store, to this mix which is right on the edge of

13· ·tolerable is perceived to be too much.· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Thank

15· ·you.· All right.· There is -- thank you very much for

16· ·the testimony and the presentation today.· I know that

17· ·it was a long day.· And -- but I want to thank you for

18· ·taking the time to come here and have your voice say.

19· ·More so to the protestants and to have your voice said.

20· ·The Board appreciates your testimony, and we will

21· ·consider your -- the testimony that was made.

22· · · · · · · ·And to the applicant also I also thank you
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·1· ·for the presentation that was made and we appreciate

·2· ·coming down here, that I -- unfortunately the parties

·3· ·could not come to an agreement and so The Board will

·4· ·make a decision.· All right.· So I'm going to ask you

·5· ·this.· It's a legal technicality that like do the

·6· ·parties wish to file proposed findings of law --

·7· ·findings in fact or conclusions of law?· And basically

·8· ·what that is is that you will wait about 30 days for the

·9· ·transcript of this hearing.· You'll read the transcript,

10· ·and you will decide if you need to file any proposed

11· ·findings of fact and conclusions of law.· It's my

12· ·understanding that in protest hearings that this is

13· ·normally never done.· But it's something that's offered

14· ·to you, and you can decide to waive it.· So do you want

15· ·to do that or do you want to waive?

16· · · · · · · ·MR. VINING:· I would like to waive it.· I'm

17· ·familiar with it from -- from court cases, and I just

18· ·don't think it's appropriate for us to go into that

19· ·level of detail with the precedent law.· And what I -- I

20· ·don't -- I'd like to waive it because I don't see the

21· ·appropriateness, the usefulness.· I think we have said

22· ·what we need to say.· I think The Board has what it
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·1· ·needs to decide.

·2· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· All right.· Thank

·3· ·you.· Yes, sir.· You -- you also waive it too?

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. GEBRKIDAN:· Yeah.· We'll agree with what

·5· ·the -- Board decision.

·6· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Okay.· All right.· As

·7· ·chairperson of the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board for

·8· ·the District of Columbia in accordance with Section 405

·9· ·of the Open Meetings Act of 2010 I move that the ABC

10· ·Board hold a closed meeting for the purpose of seeking

11· ·legal advice -- I'm sorry, I'm sorry, I need the number,

12· ·yeah -- for seeking legal advice on Capitol -- Capitol

13· ·Market, License Number 091021 per Section 405B4 of the

14· ·Open Meetings Amendment Act of 2010 and deliberating

15· ·upon Capitol Market, Case Number -- and I didn't -- I

16· ·didn't give the case number -- Case Number 16-PRO-00016

17· ·for the reasons cited in Section 405B of the Open

18· ·Meetings Amendment Act of 2010.· Is there a second?

19· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· Second.

20· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Short has

21· ·seconded the motion.· I will now take a roll call vote

22· ·on the motion before us that has been seconded.
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·1· ·Ms. Miller.

·2· · · · · · · ·MS. MILLER:· Agree.

·3· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Alberti.

·4· · · · · · · ·MR. ALBERTI:· I agree.

·5· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Short.

·6· · · · · · · ·MR. SHORT:· I agree.

·7· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Silverstein.

·8· · · · · · · ·MR. SILVERSTEIN:· I agree.

·9· · · · · · · ·CHAIRPERSON ANDERSON:· Mr. Anderson.· As it

10· ·appears the motion has passed, I hereby give notice that

11· ·the ABC Board -- excuse me -- will hold a closed meeting

12· ·in the ABC Board conference room pursuant to the Open

13· ·Meetings Amendment Act of 2010 and issue an order within

14· ·90 days.· Thank you very much.· So in 90 days we'll

15· ·issue an order on what the decision we're going to make.

16· ·And again, thank you very much for being here today.

17· ·All right.· Thank you.

18· · · · · · · ·(Whereupon the above-entitled matter was

19· ·concluded.)

20

21

22
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